Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA
Date:

Wednesday, 14 February 2018

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

The internal and external auditors will be available to meet committee
members from 6.15 to 6.30 pm. Any councillors who are not able or do
not wish to attend the session at 6.15 pm are requested to join the
meeting with the Executive Councillors and officers at 6.30 pm.
6 February 2018
PART 1
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee
i)
ii)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Other Interests.

3.

To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

4.

Appointment of Independent Members (Pages 7 - 8)

5.

Annual Audit Letter for 2016/17 (Pages 9 - 22)

6.

Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report (Pages 23 - 24)

7.

External Audit 2017/18 Audit Plan (Pages 25 - 42)

8.

External Audit Informing the Risk Assessment (Pages 43 - 72)

9.

Risk Management Update (overview of strategic, operational and project risks)
(Pages 73 - 86)

10.

Annual Governance Statement - Progress against 2016/17 Action Plan (Pages 87 96)

11.

Treasury Management Update (Pages 97 - 108)

12.

2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy (Pages 109 - 136)

13.

2017/2018 Internal Audit Periodic Report (Pages 137 - 158)

14.

Work programme 2018/19 (Pages 159 - 160)

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee
Councillor F Sloman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor A Barrow
Councillor C Boynton
Councillor S Helliwell
Councillor N Longos
Councillor J Pritchard
Councillor J Todd
Councillor J Walton
Councillor J Douglas (Chair)

Agenda Item 3
High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE
Meeting:

Wednesday, 27 September 2017 at 6.30 pm in The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens,
Buxton

Present:

Councillor F Sloman (Chair)
Councillors A Barrow, S Helliwell, A McKeown (substitute for N Longos),
J Perkins (substitute for C Boynton), J Todd and J Walton
Phil Jones (External Audit) and Councillors Lomax and Thrane were also in
attendance.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors C Boynton, N Longos
and J Pritchard

18/23

TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE
THE COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 2)
There were no declarations of interest made.

18/24

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2017 be approved as a
correct record.

18/25

EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS
(Agenda Item 4)
The Authority’s External Auditors presented the Audit Findings for the
Council for the year ending 31st March 2017. It was reported that the
accounts had been prepared promptly and in good order. Matters referred
to included the concept of materiality, significant risk areas and
improvements to bank reconciliations. Good arrangements were in place in
the Council to secure value for money.
It was reported that a number of completed Related Party Transaction forms
had not been returned by councillors. It was important that members
completed these forms in order for the Council’s arrangements to identify,
account for and disclose related party relationships and transactions to be
fully effective.
The Committee expressed their thanks to staff for their work and to Phil
Jones for his service and wished him well for the future.

Page 3



Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 27 September 2017

RESOLVED:
That the External Audit Update be noted.
18/26

STATEMENT OF FINAL ACCOUNTS
(Agenda Item 5)
The Committee considered the final version of the Statement of Accounts
2016/17.
RESOLVED:
That the Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 be approved.

18/27

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE
(Agenda Item 6)
The purpose of the report was to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s
risk management arrangements in accordance with generally accepted
good practice. The report included key changes identified to strategic and
operational risks.
RESOLVED:
That the Council’s current risk position and the mitigation plans summarised
within Appendix A (strategic risks) and Appendix B (operational risks) of the
report be noted.

18/28

TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE: MID YEAR REPORT 2017/18
(Agenda Item 7)
The Council’s Treasury Management performance in 2017/18 was
scrutinised in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2009
and generally accepted good practice. Discussion took place with regards to
a potential increase in the base rate, investment income and the Council’s
borrowing position.
RESOLVED:
That the Treasury Management position (as at 31 August 2017) be noted.

18/29

2017/18 INTERNAL AUDIT PERIODIC REPORT APRIL TO AUGUST 2017
(Agenda Item 8)
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required the Council to
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report
periodically to the Audit Committee on the internal audit activity’s
performance relative to its plan. The report summarised the outcome of five

Page 4

Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 27 September 2017
st

audits completed during the period 1 April to 31
Satisfactory assurance was found in each case.

st



August 2017.

RESOLVED:
That the progress information contained within the report be noted.
18/30

APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR 2018/19
(Agenda Item 9)
Consideration was given to the selection of the Mayor for the municipal year
2017/18.
RESOLVED:
That at its meeting on 30th November 2017 Council confirm that the
Conservative Group be invited to make a nomination for the appointment of
Mayor of the Borough and Chairman of the Council for the municipal year
2018/19.

18/31

MINUTES OF THE CONSTITUTION SUB-COMMITTEE - 19 SEPTEMBER
2017
(Agenda Item 10)
The Committee considered the recommendations of The Constitution SubCommittee with regards to revised Terms of Reference for the Audit and
Regulatory Committee, Procurement Procedure Rules and delegations to
the Executive Director (Transformation).
RESOLVED:
That the recommendations from the Constitution Sub-Committee be
approved.

18/32

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
(Agenda Item 11)
RESOLVED:
That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
item because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as
defined in paragraphs 3 and 5 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.

18/33

TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 12)
RESOLVED:
That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2017 be approved
as a correct record.

Page 5

Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 27 September 2017

The meeting concluded at 7.05 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 6



Agenda Item 4
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee
14 February 2018

TITLE:

Appointment of Independent Members

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane - Executive
Councillor for Finance and Operational
Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

Linden Vernon – Senior Officer –
Governance and Member Support

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached – None

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To consider the appointment of Independent Members to the Committee.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the following persons be appointed as Independent Members of the
Audit and Regulatory Committee:



Mr Peter Grant
Mrs Cheryl Morgan

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

Each year members of the Audit and Regulatory Committee consider a report
which reviews the effectiveness of the Committee. The last review
demonstrated that there was a shortfall in some specialist areas of knowledge.
At its meeting on 11 May 2017 Council therefore granted delegated
responsibility to the Committee to appoint three independent members to
address this issue.

3.2

It is now recommended that the Committee appoints Mr Peter Grant and Mrs
Cheryl Morgan to two of the positions. The third position is currently being
advertised via the Council’s website.

Page 7

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the
effective scrutiny and development of Council polices and services.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers
Report to Council 11 May 2017

Contact details
Linden Vernon
Senior Officer - Governance and
Member Support
linden.vernon@highpeak.gov.uk

5.

Detail

5.1

Each year members of the Audit and Regulatory Committee consider a report
which reviews the effectiveness of the Committee. Following the last review
committee members completed a self-assessment of their individual
knowledge and skills. The self-assessment demonstrated that there was a
shortfall in some specialist areas of knowledge.

5.2

The committee therefore resolved to consider the appointment of independent
members whose skills would need to be focussed in the areas where a
shortfall had been identified.

5.3

At its meeting on 11 May 2017 Council resolved that the Committee comprise
9 elected members and 3 (non-voting) independent members and that
delegated responsibility be granted to the Audit and Regulatory Committee to
appoint future independent members.

5.4

It is now recommended that the Committee appoints Mr Peter Grant and Mrs
Cheryl Morgan to two of the independent member positions. Mr Grant and
Mrs Morgan currently act as substitutes for the Council’s Independent Person
and were previously interviewed for these posts by Councillors Thrane,
Sloman and Oakley. Both candidates bring to the Committee strong
experience in scrutinising financial/numerical information and examining
complex documentation.
Mrs Morgan has worked previously as a
Government statistician whilst Mr Grant has a legal background and has
managed cases for the Citizens Advice Bureau.

5.5

Each position will receive an allowance of £395 per annum and appointees will
be able to claim out of pocket expenses. The third position is currently being
advertised via the Council’s website and it is hoped that a recommendation for
the final appointment will be made at the Committee’s next meeting.

Page 8

The Annual Audit Letter
for High Peak Borough Council
Page 9

Year ended 31 March 2017
October 2017

Allison Rhodes
Manager
T 0121 232 5285
E allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

Agenda Item 5

Phil Jones
Engagement Lead
T 0121 232 5232
E phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com

Contents
Section

Page

1. Executive summary

3

2. Audit of the accounts

5

3. Value for Money conclusion

9

Appendices
A Reports issued and fees

12

Page 10
© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

2

Executive summary
Our work
Financial statements opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 28
September 2017.

This Letter provides a commentary on the results of our work to the Council and
its external stakeholders, and highlights issues we wish to draw to the attention of
the public. In preparing this letter, we have followed the National Audit Office
(NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and Auditor Guidance Note (AGN)
07 – 'Auditor Reporting'.

Value for money conclusion
We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources during the year ended
31 March 2017. We reflected this in our audit opinion on 28 September 2017.

We reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit and
Accounts Committee (as those charged with governance) in our Audit Findings
Report on 27 September 2017.

Certificate
We certified that we had completed the audit of the accounts of High Peak
Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code on
28 September 2017.

Page 11

Purpose of this letter
Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the
work we have carried out at High Peak Borough Council (the Council) for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

Our responsibilities
We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit
Practice, which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 (the Act). Our key responsibilities are to:
• give an opinion on the Council's financial statements (section two)
• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section
three).

Certification of grants
We also carry out work to certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on
behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions. Our work on this claim is not
yet complete and will be finalised by 30 November 2017. We will report the results
of this work to the Audit and Accounts Committee in our Annual Certification
Letter.

In our audit of the Council's financial statements, we comply with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the
NAO.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

3

Our work with you in 2016/17
An efficient audit – we delivered the accounts audit before the deadline. Our audit
team are knowledgeable and experienced in your financial accounts and systems.
Improved financial processes – during the year we reviewed your financial systems
and processes including journals processing, employee remuneration and operating
expenditure.
Understanding your operational health – through the value for money conclusion
we provided you with assurance on your operational effectiveness.

Page 12

Support outside of the audit – we supported you on a number of areas outside of
the audit. These included leisure services and waste management.
Working with the Council
We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.
Grant Thornton UK LLP
October 2017

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

4

Audit of the accounts
Our audit approach
Materiality
In our audit of the Council's accounts, we applied the concept of materiality to
determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and to evaluate the results of
our work. We define materiality as the size of the misstatement in the financial
statements that would lead a reasonably knowledgeable person to change or
influence their economic decisions.

Page 13

We determined materiality for our audit of the Council's accounts to be £1,021,000
which is 2% of the Council's gross revenue expenditure. We used this benchmark,
as in our view, users of the Council's accounts are most interested in how it has
spent the income it has raised from taxation and grants during the year.
We also set a lower level of specific materiality for disclosures of officers'
remuneration, salary bandings and exit packages and related party transactions. We
set a lower threshold of £20,000,.
We set a lower trivial threshold of £51,000, above which we reported errors to the
Audit Committee in our Audit Findings Report.
.

The scope of our audit
Our audit involves obtaining enough evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements to give reasonable assurance they are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes
assessing whether:
• the Council's accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed;
• significant accounting estimates made by the Executive Director (CFO) are
reasonable; and
• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view.
We also read the narrative report and annual governance statement to check
they are consistent with our understanding of the Council and with the accounts
included in the Statement of Accounts on which we gave our opinion.
We carry out our audit in line with ISAs (UK and Ireland) and the NAO Code
of Audit Practice. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's
business and is risk based.
We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response
to these risks and the results of this work.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

5

Audit of the accounts
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.
Risks identified in our audit
plan

Findings and conclusions

Payroll expenditure represents
a significant percentage of the
Council’s gross expenditure.

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:


Documented our understanding of the processes and controls in place around the accounting
for employee remuneration

Our audit work has not identified any
significant issues in relation to the risk
identified.

We identified the completeness
of payroll expenditure in the
financial statements as a risk
requiring particular audit
attention:
• Employee remuneration
accruals understated
(Remuneration expenses not
correct)



walked through the controls in place (to confirm our understanding) over payroll expenditure



performed trend analysis to identify any unusual variances in pay transactions



reviewed the reconciliation of your payroll system to the general ledger

Non-pay expenditure
represents a significant
percentage of the Council’s
gross expenditure.
Management uses judgement to
estimate accruals of un-invoiced
non-pay costs.

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:



reviewed the completeness and accuracy of the control account reconciliation between the
purchase ledger and the general ledger

We identified the completeness
of non- pay expenditure in the
financial statements as a risk
requiring particular audit
attention:
• Creditors understated or not
recorded in the correct period
(Operating expenses
understated)



obtained an understanding of the accruals process and tested a sample of accruals (along with
other creditors balances)



tested a sample of payments after the year end to confirm these were accounted for in the
correct period.

Page 14

How we responded to the risk

We have also carried out other work in this area:
•

tested a sample of employee remuneration payments in the year to ensure accurately
accounted for and in the correct period



agreed the disclosure of senior officers remuneration to the information from the payroll system
and supporting evidence (in full rather than sample approach).



Documented our understanding of the processes and controls in place around the accounting
for operating expenses

Our audit work has not identified any
significant issues in relation to the risk
identified.

 walked through the key controls to assess whether those controls were in line with our
documented understanding

We have also tested a sample of operating expense transactions in the year to ensure these are
accurately accounted for and in the correct period.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

6

Audit of the accounts
Risks identified in our audit
plan
CIPFA has been working on the
‘Telling the Story’ project, for
which the aim was to streamline
the financial statements and
improve accessibility to the user
and this has resulted in changes
to the 2016/17 CIPFA Code of
Practice.

Page 15

The changes affect the
presentation of income and
expenditure in the financial
statements and associated
disclosure notes. A prior period
adjustment (PPA) to restate the
2015/16 comparative figures is
also required.

How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

Our audit work has not identified any
significant issues in relation to the risk
identified.



reviewed the re-classification of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)
comparatives to ensure that they are in line with the Council’s internal reporting structure



reviewed the appropriateness of the revised grouping of entries within the Movement In
Reserves Statement (MIRS)



tested the classification of income and expenditure for 2016/17 recorded within the Cost of
Services section of the CIES



tested the completeness of income and expenditure by reviewing the reconciliation of the CIES
to the general ledger



tested the classification of income and expenditure reported within the new Expenditure and
Funding Analysis (EFA) note to the financial statements



reviewed the new segmental reporting disclosures within the 2016/17 financial statements to
ensure compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

The Council have prepared the new
statements in accordance with the
requirements.
The disclosure of the effect of these
changes on the prior year comparatives
is comprehensive and particularly well
presented.
Presentation amendment to separate
the movement on the general fund and
HRA balances reported on the EFA.

7

Audit of the accounts
Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's accounts on 28 September 2017,
in advance of the 30 September 2017 national deadline.

Both documents were prepared in line with the relevant guidance and were
consistent with the supporting evidence provided by the Council and with our
knowledge of the Council.

Page 16

We received the draft financial statements on 5 June, as the Council were
successful in pulling forward their own closedown timetable in readiness to meet
the earlier opinion deadline of 31 July from 2017/18 onwards. The Council
provided a good set of supporting working papers. The finance team responded
promptly and efficiently to our queries during the audit. We will work with officers
to agree how best we can achieve this significantly earlier deadline next year.

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report
We are required to review the Council's Annual Governance Statement and
Narrative Report. It published them on its website with the draft accounts in
line with the national deadlines.

Issues arising from the audit of the accounts
We reported the key issues from our audit of the accounts of the Council to the
Council's Audit and Accounts Committee on 27 September 2017.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

8

Value for Money conclusion
Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit Practice
(the Code), following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2016 which
specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:
In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys resources
to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

Overall VfM conclusion
We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ending 31 March 2017.

Page 17

Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and
identify the key risks where we concentrated our work.
The key risks we identified and the work we performed are set out in table 2
overleaf.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

9

Value for Money
Table 2: Value for money risks
Risk identified

Work carried out

Medium Term Financial Plan

Page 18

The Council has historically managed its
finances well and has consistently
achieved savings. It is on course to
achieve an underspend against its
general fund budget for 2016/17. However,
following the most recent settlement, and
with the expected reduction in government
grant, the Council has identified that it
must secure savings of over £2.1m for the
general fund over the lifetime of the four
year MTFP.

We met with key officers to discuss key strategic
challenges and the Council's proposed response
and considered reports to members to:
•

review the outturn position for 16/17 and the
budget plans for 17/18

•

review the Council's progress in updating its
medium term financial plan and efficiency and
rationalisation strategy (which includes major
procurement activities)

The challenge that this saving requirement
presents to the longer term financial
sustainability of the Council is regarded a
significant risk to the VFM conclusion.

Findings and conclusions
The Council has set out its proposals to secure the £2.1m of financial savings
over the four year period of the MTFS 2017 - 2012. The new efficiency and
rationalisation strategy has been incorporated into the budget setting cycle and
so was subject to Council approval in Feb 2017. The strategy sets out five areas
of focus, these being major procurement, asset management, housing and
economic growth, income generation and rationalisation. These schemes have a
longer lead in time and so the Council is planning the use of reserves of £2.095 m
in the first three years of MTFS, to support this transition. Reserves remain at an
appropriate level and so this strategy is not considered to place the Council at
undue risk and the retained balance remains in line with the Council's reserves
policy.
We note the outcome of the financial position reported for 2016/17, The
provisional outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for the year is
£9,554,288. This represents a surplus of £697,021. Although the Council report a
shortfall of £419,210 in the delivery of the Efficiency Plan savings in-year, the inyear underspend on the overall budget has meant that the Council has not drawn
from the earmarked reserve set up to support the Efficiency Programme. The
Housing Revenue Account Budget has secured a surplus of £2.447m which is
taken to reserves to support future capital and revenue costs relating to the
housing stock.
On this basis, we have sufficient assurance that the Council has appropriate
arrangement in place to identify and realise further financial savings over the
lifetime of the MTFP. We have obtained sufficient information to support our value
for money conclusion, particularly with regard to the Council's arrangements for
utilising assets effectively to support the delivery of strategic priorities, and
planning finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of strategic
priorities and maintain statutory functions.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

10

Value for Money
Table 2: Value for money risks (continued)
Risk identified

Work carried out

HRA Business Plan
The Council's Business Plan for the
housing revenue account, is affected by
external factors including the government
announcements of rent reductions that
must be applied in future.

We considered how the Council have responded to
the developments that impact upon its HRA
Business Plan through discussions with officers and
review of key documents and reports to Members.

Page 19

We need to consider the Council's
arrangements to update its Business Plan
during 2016/17 in light of this and other
developments , and how it is seeking to
address the longer term financial
sustainability of the housing revenue
account. This area represents a risk to the
VFM conclusion.

Findings and conclusions
During 2016/17 there has been a fundamental review of the HRA Business Plan
in order to reflect the impact of rent reductions as announced by Government.
The original projection was that the social sector rent reduction would result in a
annual deficit on the HRA of £2.2m. The Council put in place arrangements to
develop the 30 year business plan, alongside a process of self assessment
against the CIPFA / CIH Voluntary Code for Self financed HRA and the
opportunity to address any matters unresolved from the transfer of the housing
function from the former arms length management organisation (ALMO) High
Peak Community Housing.
This work has continued throughout 2016/17 and has resulted in the HRA
Business plan - Financial improvement plan as set out in the appendix B to the
MTFS with further work to finalise the HRA Business Plan early in 2017/18.
The improvement plan reports an improvement to the projected deficit position,
reducing this to £770k in 2020/21. The plan for 2017/18 is for a small surplus of
£57k - but the following three years then build up to annual deficit positions of
£243k( in 18/19), £496k in 2019/20 and £770k in 2020/21.
Whilst at this stage the HRA still showed an overall deficit in the medium term,
we note that the review continued into 2017/18. The projections of further
savings to be secured, indicated that there are areas where savings will be
focussed in order to provide for a balanced HRA. The projections from these
areas, which include voluntary reduction in repayment of debt, rental income,
repairs and maintenance savings, ICT costs, void costs and savings through
the disposal of surplus stock, may realise savings of up to £1.2m per annum and
so more than cover the projected deficits referred above.
On this basis, we are satisfied that this does not pose a risk to our VFM
conclusion, particularly with regard to the Council having appropriate
arrangements in place during 2016/17, for utilising assets effectively to support
the delivery of strategic priorities, and planning finances effectively to support
the sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory functions.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

11

Appendix A: Reports issued and fees
We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.
Fees

Fees for other services
Proposed
fee
£

Actual fees
£

2015/16 fees
£

Statutory audit of Council

47,273

47,273

47,273

Housing Benefit Grant Certification

11,040

11,040

11,040

Total fees (excluding VAT)

58,313

58,313

58,313

Page 20

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector
Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA).

Service

Fees £

Audit related services:

Pooling Capital Receipts 15/16 – work completed in
November 2016

2,200

Non-audit services:
•

Leisure services – options (work completed in
2016/17)

8,990

•

CFOi insights – subscription agreed September 2016

2,000

•

Place Analytics – year 3 of subscription package

5,625

•

Waste management benchmarking and business
case challenge (reduced from that reported in the
audit plan)

4,396

Reports issued
Report

Date issued

Audit Plan

February 2017

Audit Findings Report

September 2017

Annual Audit Letter

October 2017

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

Non- audit services

• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant
Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The table
above summarises all other services which were identified.
• We have considered whether other services might be perceived as a
threat to our independence as the Council’s auditor and have ensured
that appropriate safeguards are put in place, as reported in our Audit
Findings Report.

12

Page 21
© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights served.
'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton
member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their
clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context
requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton
International LTD (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a
worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate
legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does
not provide services to clients. GTIL, and its member firms are not
agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for
one another's acts or omissions.

grant-thornton.co.uk

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council | October 2017

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Andrew Stokes
Executive Director
High Peak Borough Council
Buxton Town Hall
Market Place
BUXTON
Derbyshire
SK17 6EL

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Colmore Building
20 Colmore Circus
Birmingham B4 6AT
T +44 (0)121 212 4000
F +44 (0)121 212 4014
DX 13174 Birmingham
www.grant-thornton.co.uk

10 January 2018
Dear Andrew

Certification work for High Peak Borough Council for year ended 31
March 2017

We are required to certify the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim submitted by High Peak
Borough Council ('the Council'). This certification takes place six to nine months after the
claim period and represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the Council's
entitlement to funding.
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gave the Secretary of State power to transfer
Audit Commission responsibilities to other bodies. Public Sector Audit Appointments
(PSAA) took on the transitional responsibilities for HB COUNT issued by the Audit
Commission in February 2015.
Overall, we are pleased to report that the Council has appropriate arrangements to compile a
complete, accurate and timely claim for audit certification. The claim for Housing Benefit
Subsidy, reported a total value of subsidy claimed of £20,807,707. This was not subject to a
qualification letter and there were no amendments to the claim.
The indicative fee for 2016/17 for the Council was based on the final 2014/15 certification
fees, reflecting the amount of audit work required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy
claim that year. The indicative scale fee set by PSAA for the Council for 2016/17 is £11,040.
The amount of work required by us to certify the housing benefit subsidy claim this year is
consistent with that in the 'base' year and so there is no variation from the indicative fee.
In addition, and under the terms of a separate engagement letter, we also provide an
assurance statement on the Council's annual Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return for
2016/17, in accordance with the requirements set out by the Department of Communities
and Local Government. The proposed fee for this work is £2,400, which is not included in
the scale fee referred to above.
Yours sincerely

Grant Patterson
Director
For Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.
A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and
its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see www.grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2018
Page 25

High Peak Borough Council
14 February 2018

Agenda Item 7

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

Contents
Section

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Page 26

Grant Patterson

Engagement Lead
T: +44 121 232 5296

E: grant.b.patterson@uk.gt.com

Page

1. Introduction & headlines

3

2. Deep business understanding

4

3. Significant risks identified

5

4. Reasonably possible risks identified

7

5. Other matters

8

6. Materiality

9

7. Group audit scope and risk assessment

10

8. Value for Money arrangements

11

9. Audit logistics, team & audit fees

12

10. Early close

13

11. Independence & non-audit services

14

Allison Rhodes
Audit Manager
T: +44 121 232 5285
E: allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com

Lisa Morrey
Audit in-charge
T: +44 121 232 5302
E: lisa.morrey@uk.gt.com

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Council or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.
We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,
nor intended for, any other purpose.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members
is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

2

Introduction & headlines

Scope of our audit
The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

Purpose
This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory
audit of High Peak Borough Council (‘the Council’) for those charged with governance.
We will report any updates or changes to our risk assessments arising from our interim
audit visits as part of our ‘Interim Progress Report’.
Respective responsibilities
The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and
end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are
also set in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as
auditor of High Peak Borough Council. We draw your attention to both of these
documents on the PSAA website.

Page 27

Significant risks

•

financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement) that have been
prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance (the
Audit and Regulatory Committee); and

•

Value for Money arrangements in place at the Council for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit and
Regulatory Committee of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Council to
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business, and that
public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have considered how the
Council is fulfilling these responsibilities.
Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is
risk based.

Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have
been identified as:
•

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions

•

Management over-ride of controls

•

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

•

Valuation of pension fund net liability

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit
Findings (ISA 260) Report.
Materiality

We have determined planning materiality to be £1.021m (PY £1.021m), which equates to 2% of your 2016/17 gross expenditure (cost of
services) for the year. We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those
charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at £51,050 (consistent with prior year).

Value for Money arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified no VFM significant risks, that require further
specific audit consideration and procedures, to address the likelihood that proper arrangements are not in place at the Council to deliver
value for money.

Audit logistics

Our interim visit will take place in March and our final visit will take place in June - July. Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our
Audit Findings Report.
Our fee for the audit will be no less than £47,273 (consistent with the prior year) for the Council.

Independence

We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

3

Deep business understanding
Changes to service delivery
Commercialisation

Joint Venture

We see the scale of investment
activity, primarily in commercial
property, increase as local
authorities seek to maximise
income generation. These
investments are often
discharged through a company,
partnership or other investment
vehicle.

The Council has set up a joint venture
Alliance Environment Services, set up
with its alliance partner and ANSA, a
Cheshire East Council company.
There is a phased programme for
transition of waste and street scene
services to this new Company from
August 2017.

Page 28

Local authorities need to
ensure that their commercial
activities are presented
appropriately, in compliance
with the CIPFA Code of
Practice and statutory
framework, such as the Capital
Finance Regulations. Where
borrowing to finance these
activities, local authorities need
to comply with CIPFA’s
Prudential Code. A new version
is published in December 2017.

This project is part of the efficiency
and rationalisation strategy which now
sees the Council focusing on the
operation of a number services where
contractual commitments come to an
end, covering:
•

waste and street services

•

operation of leisure centres

•

facilities management.

These changes are key to the delivery
of the medium term financial plan
(MTFP).

Changes to financial reporting requirements
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (the
Regulations)
The Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) is currently undertaking a review
of the Regulations, which may be subject to change.
The date for any proposed changes has yet to be
confirmed, so it is not yet clear or whether they will
apply to the 2017/18 financial statements.

Under the 2015 Regulations local authorities are
required to publish their accounts along with the
auditors opinion by 31 July 2018.

Changes to the CIPFA 2017/18 Accounting Code
CIPFA have introduced other minor changes to the
2017/18 Code which confirm the going concern basis
for local authorities. We have set out the changes to
auditing standards relating to Going Concern matters
in appendix A
The Code also provide updates for Leases, Service
Concession arrangements and financial instruments.

The Council needs to ensure its
governance and accounting
arrangements comply with the Code
and statutory framework.

Key challenges
Financial pressures
The Council set a net budget for 2017/18 of £10.279m, including a
net contribution of £0.547m from reserves, (smoothing timing
differences in the delivery of the Efficiency Programme) and the
achievement of £0.661m of such savings in year.
Reporting for Quarter 2 in December 2017 indicated that the
Council is on course to meet the overall savings requirements for
the year and that there will be a surplus against budget of
approximately £1.079m enabling a contribution to reserves of
£0.532m .
The proposals of the MTFP (December 2017) set out a proposed
net revenue budget for 2018/19 of £10.902m and a Council Tax
increase of 1.9%,along with the inclusion of an efficiency and
rationalisation target of £0.581m and a drawdown of £1.957m from
reserves to produce a balanced budget. The proposed housing
revenue account budget also indicates a surplus of £0.491m,
reflecting the 1% reduction in HRA dwelling rents and a
rationalisation plan of £0.810m.
This draw down from reserves is consistent with expectations
given that the efficiency programme has a longer lead in time and
that there was a planned use of reserves to support this transition.
We expect the Council to maintain the level of reserves at an
appropriate level, ensure that strategy does not place the Council
at undue risk and that the retained balance remains in line with the
Council's reserve policy.

Our response
•

We have identified no VFM significant risks at this time but will continue to keep under review your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources and for working
with partners, as part of the ongoing work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

•

We will consider whether your financial position leads to uncertainty about the going concern assumption and will review any related disclosures in the financial statements.

•

We will keep you informed of changes to the Regulations and any associated changes to financial reporting or public inspection requirements for 2017/18 through on-going
discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

•

As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2017/18 CIPFA Code.

•

We will consider the progress you have made against previously agreed recommendations relating to IT controls.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

4

Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by professional standards as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration because they have a higher risk of material
misstatement. Such risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential
magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent
transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue
may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there
is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue
recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature
of the revenue streams at the Council, we have determined that the
risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted,
because:

Page 29
Management over-ride of controls

•

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

•

opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

•

the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including
High Peak Borough Council, mean that all forms of fraud are
seen as unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for High
Peak Borough Council.

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the
risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. .
The Council faces external scrutiny of its spending, and this could
potentially place management under undue pressure in terms of
how they report performance.
Management over-ride of controls is a risk requiring special audit
consideration.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

We will:
•

gain an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements
applied and decisions made by management and consider their
reasonableness

•

obtain a full listing of journal entries, identify and test unusual
journal entries for appropriateness

•

evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies or
significant unusual transactions.

5

Significant risks identified
Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of property,
plant and equipment

The Council revalues its land and buildings every five years, to ensure
that carrying value is not materially different from fair value. This
represents a significant estimate by management in the financial
statements.

We will:


review management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the
estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their
work

We identified the valuation of land and buildings revaluations and
impairments as a risk requiring special audit consideration.
.



consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management
experts used.



discuss with the valuer about the basis on which the valuation is carried out
and challenge the key assumptions.



review and challenge the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust
and consistent with our understanding.



test revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into
the Council's asset register



evaluate the assumptions made by management for those assets not
revalued during the year and how management has satisfied themselves that
these are not materially different to current value.

Page 30

Risk

Valuation of pension
fund net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as reflected in its balance
sheet represent a significant estimate in the financial statements.

We will:


identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension
fund liability is not materially misstated and assess whether these controls
were implemented as expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the
risk of material misstatement



evaluate the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried
out your pension fund valuation



gain an understanding of the basis on which the valuation is carried out



undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial
assumptions made



check the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures
in notes to the financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary.

We identified the valuation of the pension fund net liability as a risk
requiring special audit consideration.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

6

Reasonably possible risks identified
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement cannot be
reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of substantive work. The risk
of misstatement for an RPR is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of
the business.
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Employee remuneration

Payroll expenditure represents a significant percentage approximately 21% - of the Council’s operating expenses.

We will

Page 31
Operating expenses

•

As the payroll expenditure comes from a number of individual
•
transactions and an interface between the payroll and ledger
systems, there is a risk that payroll expenditure in the accounts could
be understated. We therefore identified completeness of payroll
expenses as a risk requiring particular audit attention
•

•

Non-pay expenses on other goods and services also represents a
significant percentage 67% of the Council’s operating expenses.
Management uses judgement to estimate accruals of un-invoiced
costs.

| 14 February 2018

gain an understanding of the Council's system for accounting for
payroll expenditure and evaluate the design of the associated
controls
review year-end payroll reconciliation and check that amounts in
the accounts are reconciled to ledger and through to payroll
reports
agree payroll related accruals (e.g. unpaid leave accrual) to
supporting documents.

We will:
•

evaluate the Council's accounting policy for recognition of nonpay expenditure for appropriateness

•

gain an understanding of the Council's system for accounting for
non-pay expenditure and evaluate the design of the associated
controls

•

document the accruals process and challenge underlying
assumptions, source date and basis for calculation

•

test a sample of payments and ensure that they have been
charged in the appropriate year

•

review the year end accounts payable reconciliation and
investigate significant reconciling items.

We identified completeness of non- pay expenses as a risk requiring
particular audit attention:

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

evaluate the Council's accounting policy for recognition of payroll
expenditure for appropriateness

7

Other matters
Other work

Other material balances and transactions

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

•

We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual
Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued and consistent with our
knowledge of the Council.

•

We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the
financial statements on which we give an opinion and that the disclosures included in
it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.
We anticipate that the Council will be below the audit threshold and so there will be
no requirement for us to review the consolidation schedules for the Whole of
Government Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

•

We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required,
including:

•

Page 32

•

•

giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2017/18
financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in
relation to the 2017/18 financial statements;

•

issue of a report in the public interest; and

•

making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of
State.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is
a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK)
570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption and
evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.

We certify completion of our audit.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

8

Materiality
The concept of materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process
and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to
acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be
material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality

£1.021m
Prior year gross expenditure
(cost of services)

Materiality for planning purposes

£51,035m

(PY: £1.021m)

Page 33

We propose to calculate financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross expenditure of the
Council for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark. We have determined planning
materiality (the financial statements materiality determined at the planning stage of the audit) to be £1.021m (PY
£1.021m), which equates to 2% of gross expenditure. We have used the prior year gross expenditure (adjusted
to remove the on- off effect of the value of the reversal of housing impairment) as a proxy for the forecast gross
expenditure for the year. We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of
precision.

Whole financial
statements
materiality

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we become aware of facts and
circumstances that would have caused us to make a different determination of planning materiality
ISA (UK and Ireland 320) also requires auditors to determine separate lower materiality levels when there are
‘particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts
than materiality to the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users’. We will consider a separate materiality level for the disclosure of senior managers salary
and allowances, on receipt of the draft financial statements and will report this to the Audit and Regulatory
Committee.
Matters we will report to the Audit and Regulatory Committee
Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit and Regulatory Committee any unadjusted
misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK)
‘Communication with those charged with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or
misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK)
defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and
whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of the Council, we propose that an
individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £51,050 (consistent with
prior year).

£51,050
Gross expenditure
Materiality

Misstatements
reported to the
Audit and
Regulatory
Committee
(PY: £51,050)

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit, we will consider
whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit and Regulatory Committee to assist it in fulfilling
its governance responsibilities
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

9

Group audit scope and risk assessment
In accordance with ISA (UK) 600, as group auditor we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the components and the
consolidation process to express an opinion on whether the group financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework.
Component

Significant?

Level of response required
under ISA (UK) 600

Risks identified

Planned audit approach

High Peak Borough
Council

Yes

Comprehensive

As described in this Audit Plan.

Full scope UK statutory audit performed by Grant Thornton UK, as
described in this Audit Plan.

We anticipate that an analytical
approach will be appropriate
however we await details of the
Council’s judgements and
financial analysis to confirm that
this component is not
considered significant to the
operations of the group.

The assessment of whether
group accounts are required
depends upon the appropriate
alignment of accounting policies
and adjustment to the reported
financial results of Alliance
Environmental Services to
determine the implications for
group financial statements and
whether these are warranted.

We will review the Council's arrangements to align accounting policies
and adjust the values reported in the accounts of Alliance Environmental
Services.

Alliance Environmental Not yet
Services Ltd
determined

Page 34

We will advise the Audit and
Regulatory Committee to any
changes to our assessment.

Key changes within the group:
This is the first year of operation of Alliance Environmental Services
Limited, a joint venture company formed by this Council with ANSA
Environmental Services Limited and Staffordshire Moorlands District
Council, for the delivery of waste collection, street cleansing, grounds
maintenance & fleet management services.
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

We will review the consolidation of the financial results of the joint
venture into the High Peak Group Accounts.
We will liaise with the auditors of the Alliance Environmental Services to:
• obtain the accounts subject to their audit,
• confirm that there are no issues that they are aware of that would
impact on our opinion on the Council's financial statements
• obtain a copy of the Audit Findings report, and
• review the letter of representation.

Audit scope
 Comprehensive – the component is of such significance
to the group as a whole that an audit of the components
financial statements is required
 Targeted – the component is significant to the Group,
audit evidence will be obtained by performing targeted
audit procedures rather than a full audit
 Analytical – the component is not significant to the Group
and audit risks can be addressed sufficiently by applying
analytical procedures at the Group level

| 14 February 2018

10

Value for Money arrangements
Background to our VFM approach

VFM risk assessment

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work for 2017/18 in
November 2017. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are
required to give a conclusion on whether the Council has proper arrangements in place.

We have carried out an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's guidance. In our initial
risk assessment, we consider :
•

our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous years in
respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial statements;

•

the findings of other inspectorates and review agencies;

•

any illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its
supporting Information;

•

any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your arrangements.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”
This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Page 35

The purpose of the risk assessment is to identify those risks requiring specific audit
consideration and procedures, to address the likelihood that proper arrangements are not
in place at the Council to deliver value for money.
Our initial risk assessment has had regard to the arrangements in place at the Council,
including reflecting on:

Informed
decision
making

Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

•

the arrangements for monitoring and managing the budget and to secure efficiencies in
its operations, demonstrated by the Council’s financial position at quarter 2 and its
expectations to achieve a surplus against its budget for the year;

•

the delivery of the efficiency and rationalisation strategy, evident through the delivery of
the budgeted position;

•

the development of the medium term financial plan, drawing on the progress made in
areas such as the HRA Business Plan and the Council’s asset management plan;

•

changes to service delivery through working with another provider of waste services to
form a joint venture.

Overall we have not identified any significant audit risks from our risk assessment.

Sustainable
resource
deployment

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

We will continue our review of your arrangements, including considering your financial
outturn and the approval of the 2018/19 budget (for any significant changes) and reviewing
your Annual Governance Statement, before we issue our auditor's report.

| 14 February 2018

11

Audit logistics, team & audit fees
Audit and Regulatory
Committee
14 February 2018

Audit and Regulatory
Committee
17 May 2018

Audit
Plan

Planning and
risk assessment

Audit and Regulatory
Committee
Sept 2018

Audit
Findings
Report

Annual
Audit
Letter

Year End Audit
June & July 2018

Interim Audit
March 2018

Interim Audit
January 2018

Audit and Regulatory
Committee
July 2018

Interim
Progress
Report

Audit
opinion

Page 36

Grant Patterson, Engagement Lead
Grant’s role is to lead our relationship with you and be a key
contact for the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and the Audit
and Regulatory Committee. Grant takes overall responsibility for
the delivery of a high quality audit, meeting the highest professional
standards and adding value to the Council.

Audit fees

.

Fees in respect of other grant work, such as agreed upon procedures reports’, are shown
under 'Fees for other services'.

Allison Rhodes, Audit Manager

In setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope of the audit, and the Council and its
activities, do not significantly change.

Allison is a key contact for the Executive Director and the Audit and
Regulatory Committee and manages the delivery of the audit, to
meet professional standards and to add value to the Council.

The planned audit fees are no less than £47,273 (PY £47,273) for our audit of the financial
statements audit and £8,699 (PY £11,040) for the Grant Certification. Our fees for grant
certification cover only housing benefit subsidy certification, which falls under the remit of
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.

Our requirements
To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, we have detailed
our expectations and requirements in the following section ‘Early Close’. If the
requirements detailed overleaf are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit visit
and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.

Lisa Morrey, Audit In-Charge
Lisa has the day to day responsibility for running the audit and is a
key contact for the Trust’s finance staff. She is responsible for
ensuring that the finance team are informed and understand our
audit requirements. She will also focus on the more technical
aspect of the audit and discuss emerging matters with you

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

12

Early close
Meeting the early close timeframe

Our requirements

Bringing forward the statutory date for publication of audited local government
accounts to 31 July this year, across the whole sector, is a significant challenge for
local authorities and auditors alike. For authorities, the time available to prepare the
accounts is curtailed, while, as auditors we have a shorter period to complete our work
and face an even more significant peak in our workload than previously.

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit or additional audit fees being incurred, you need to
ensure that you:
produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with
us, including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual Governance Statement

We have carefully planned how we can make the best use of the resources available
to us during the final accounts period. As well as increasing the overall level of
resources available to deliver audits, we have focused on:

•

ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in
accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with
you

•

bringing forward as much work as possible to interim audits

•

•

starting work on final accounts audits as early as possible, by agreeing which
authorities will have accounts prepared significantly before the end of May

ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are
reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

•

ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise
agreed) the planned period of the audit

•

respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

Page 37

•

•

seeking further efficiencies in the way we carry out our audits

•

working with you to agree detailed plans to make the audits run smoothly,
including early agreement of audit dates, working paper and data requirements
and early discussions on potentially contentious items.

We are satisfied that, if all these plans are implemented, we will be able to complete
your audit and those of our other local government clients in sufficient time to meet the
earlier deadline.
Client responsibilities

In return, we will ensure that:
•

the audit runs smoothly with the minimum disruption to your staff

•

you are kept informed of progress through the use of an issues tracker and weekly
meetings during the audit

•

we are available to discuss issues with you prior to and during your preparation of the
financial statements.

Where individual clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that
this does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time,
thereby disadvantaging other clients. We will therefore conduct audits in line with the
timetable set out in audit plans (as detailed on page 12). Where the elapsed time to
complete an audit exceeds that agreed due to a client not meetings its obligations we
will not be able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, where additional resources are
needed to complete the audit due to a client not meeting their obligations we are not
able to guarantee the delivery of the audit by the statutory deadline. Such audits are
unlikely to be re-started until very close to, or after the statutory deadline. In addition, it
is highly likely that these audits will incur additional audit fees.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

13

Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence
Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm
or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2016 which sets out supplementary
guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant
Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council.

Page 38

Non-audit services
We have set out overleaf ,the details of the non-audit services identified.
For each piece of work we have considered the possible threats to our independence, with particular regard to risk of self interest, self review, management, advocacy, familiarity and
intimidation. We are satisfied that the non audit services do not impact on the auditors independence.
The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are
consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related
services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.
None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

14

Independence & non-audit services
Service

Fees £

Threats

Safeguards

2,400

Self-Interest (because this is a
recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence
as the fee for this work is £2,400 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £47,273 and in
particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is
no contingent element to it. These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable
level.

5,625

Self-Interest (because this is a
recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence
as the fee for this work is £5,625 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £47,273 and in
particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is
no contingent element to it. These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable
level.

Audit related
Agreed upon procedures
report for pooling capital
receipts return 2016/17
(January 2018)

Non-audit related

Page 39

CFO Insights
(subscription)

PLACE Analytics
(subscription)

Nature of the service presents no other threat to independence as CFO Insights is an online
software service offering that enables users to rapidly analyse, segment and visualise all the key
data relating to the financial performance of a local authority. The financial data, revenue outturn
and budget data is provided by CIPFA and the socio-economic data is drawn from Place Analytics.
The data is contextualised using a range of socio-economic indicators enabling the LA to
understand their relative performance.

5,625

Self-Interest (because this is a
recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence
as the fee for this work is £5,625 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £47,273 and in
particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is
no contingent element to it. These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable
level.
Nature of the service presents no other threat to independence as Place Analytics is an online
software service offering that enables users to rapidly analyse, segment and visualise a host of data
sets relating to the Economic, social and environmental make-up of a local authority. The tool
enables the user to review the relative strengths and challenges facing the council across these
measures to ensure strategic planning and decision making is underpinned by evidence whilst
saving time by collating disparate data sources into one tool.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

15

Appendices

Page 40

A.

Revised ISAs

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

Appendix A: Revised ISAs
Detailed below is a summary of the key changes impacting the auditor’s report for audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 17 June 2016.

Section of the auditor's report

Description of the requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern

We will be required to conclude and report whether:

Material uncertainty related to going
concern

Page 41

Other information

•

The directors use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate

•

The directors have disclosed identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In the event that there is material uncertainty related to going concern, then we will need to include a brief description of the events or
conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the Council's ability to continue as a going concern when a material uncertainty has
been identified and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.
Going concern material uncertainties are no longer reported in an Emphasis of Matter section in our audit report.
We will be required to include a section on other information which includes:

•

Responsibilities of management and auditors regarding other information

•

A statement that the opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information unless required by law or regulation

•

Reporting inconsistencies or misstatements where identified

Additional responsibilities for directors
and the auditor

We will be required to include the respective responsibilities for directors and us, as auditors, regarding going concern.

Format of the report

The opinion section appears first followed by the basis of opinion section.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

17

Page 42
© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council

| 14 February 2018

Informing the audit risk assessment
Page 43

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18

Agenda Item 8

Contents
Purpose

3

Fraud

4

Fraud risk assessment

5

Laws and regulations

9

Impact of laws and regulations

Page 44
2

10

Going concern

13

Going concern considerations

14

Related parties

18

Related parties considerations

19

Accounting estimates

22

Appendix A – Accounting estimates

24

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between auditors and the Council's Audit Committee,
as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor risk assessment where we are required to make
inquiries of the Audit and Regulatory Committee under auditing standards.
Background
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA(UK&I)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit
Committee. ISA(UK&I) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit Committee and also specify
matters that should be communicated.

Page 45

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit and Regulatory Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit
and developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit and
Regulatory Committee and supports the Audit and Regulatory Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting
process.
Communication
As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Audit and regulatory
Committee's oversight of the following areas:
• fraud
• laws and regulations

• going concern
• related parties
• accounting estimates.
This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from the Council's management. These
responses should also reflect arrangements over the Council’s group activities.
The Audit and Regulatory Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with the its understanding and whether there
are any further comments it wishes to make.
3

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Fraud
Matters in relation to fraud
ISA(UK&I)240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.
The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit and Regulatory Committee and management. Management,
with the oversight of the Audit Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and encourage a culture of
honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit and Regulatory Committee should consider the potential for override of controls
and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

Page 46

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to
fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for management override of
controls.
As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements
management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including:
• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud
• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks
• communication with the Audit and Regulatory Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud
• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour.
We need to understand how the Audit and Regulatory Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of
both management and the Audit and Regulatory Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas have
been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from the Council's management.

4

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Fraud risk assessment
Question

Management response

Has the Council assessed the risk of material
misstatement in the financial statements due
to fraud?
What are the results of this process?

Yes. The underlying management processes are primarily as described in the Annual
Governance Statement, which is published alongside the Statement of Accounts.

These are strengthened by additional procedures specific to the Statement of Accounts.
For example, the Chief Finance Officer / Finance & Procurement Manager undertakes a
detailed review of the draft Statement of Accounts and will not issue a certificate until
satisfactory answers and assurances have been provided.
We conclude that there is no significant risk of material misstatement in the Statement of
Accounts due to fraud.

Page 47
5

How is the Audit and Regulatory Committee
satisfied that the overall control environment is
robust? In particular, what processes does the
Council have in place to identify and respond
to risks of fraud?

There are a number of policies and procedures in place including an Counter Fraud &
Corruption Strategy, RIPA Policy & Procedures, Whistleblowing Policy, risk management
arrangements set out in the risk management policy, strategy and process, participation in
the NFI.

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a
high risk of fraud, been identified and what has
been done to mitigate these risks?

No specific fraud risks or areas with a high risk of fraud have been identified. However, the
Council is always vigilant to the threat of fraud and Internal Audit work is planned to
highlight the threat of potential fraud.

Are internal controls, including segregation of
duties, in place and operating effectively?
If not, where are the risk areas and what
mitigating actions have been taken?

Overall internal controls work effectively and Internal Audit report on ineffective controls
which are corrected by management.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Internal Audit is also 'good practice compliant' and has a proven track record in planning
audit work to take account of fraud risks and responding appropriately to fraud risks in the
organisation and enhancing controls to protect against the risk of fraud (e.g. procurement
arrangements).

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Fraud risk assessment
Management response

Are there any areas where there is a potential
for override of controls or inappropriate
influence over the financial reporting process
(for example because of undue pressure to
achieve financial targets)?

Not significantly. Financial and operational targets are an important part of the
management process. However, a strong corporate commitment to appropriate ethical
behaviour outweighs any pressure to meet targets.

How does the Audit and Regulatory
Committee exercise oversight over
management's processes for identifying and
responding to risks of fraud and breaches of
internal control?
What arrangements are in place to report
fraud issues and risks to the Audit Committee?

The Audit and Regulatory Committee provides oversight through :

Page 48

Question

•

Review and approval of policies and procedures including an Counter Fraud &
Corruption Strategy, Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and Whistleblowing Policy;

•

Review of risk management arrangements set out in the risk management policy,
strategy and process;

•

Review of Internal Audit progress reports;

•

Review of Internal Audit Annual Report, which includes the opinion on the control
environment;

•

Receiving periodic updates on the outcome of any fraud investigative work;

•

Receiving updates on actions taken to enhance controls and protect against the risk of
fraud e.g. procurement arrangements; and

•

Consideration of reports from External Audit and any action plans setting out
recommendations made.

Procedures dictate that the Chair of the Audit and Regulatory Committee is informed of
any matters of actual, suspected or alleged fraud (with notification to the Audit and
Regulatory Committee subject to confidentiality).

6

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Fraud risk assessment
Question

Management response

How does the Council communicate and
encourage ethical behaviour of its staff and
contractors?

There are a number of policies and procedures in place which are reviewed and approved
by the Standards Committee including the Ethical Framework (inc. Code of Corporate
Governance), a Staff Code of Conduct, Registers for Interests and Gifts & Hospitality.
Such policies and procedures are the subject of a detailed communications process, which
includes extensive coverage during induction and training.

The Council has a well publicised Whistleblowing Policy. No significant issues have been
reported.

Page 49

How do you encourage staff to report their
concerns about fraud? Have any significant
issues been reported?

Are you aware of any related party
Not aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could give rise to
relationships or transactions that could give rise instances of fraud. Monitoring and controls in place mitigate the risk.
to risks of fraud?
Are you aware of any instances of actual,
suspected, or alleged fraud either within the
Council as a whole or within specific
departments since 1 April 2017?

Confirmation from the Monitoring Officer, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Audit Manager,
Legal & Elections Services Manager and Finance and Procurement Manager has been
obtained that no significant frauds have been identified during 2017/18.

Are you aware of any whistleblower reports or
reports under the Bribery Act since 1 April
2017?

No

If so how does the Audit and Regulatory
Committee respond to these?

7

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Fraud risk assessment
Question

Management response

How does the Council protect itself against
Fraud in its Group activities?

Alliance Environmental Services Limited [AES] : this joint operation with Staffordshire
Moorlands District Council and ANSA Environmental Services Limited (trading arm of
Cheshire East Unitary Council) is required to produce audited accounts for consolidation
in the Authority’s financial statements. Both the audit opinion and consolidation process
provide assurance as to the financial controls within the organisation.

Page 50

The Services Operating Agreement imposes a number of obligations on AES:
- To hold Monthly meetings with representatives of the Council to address operational
matters
- To prepare Statements for inclusion in the Quarterly Financial Performance reports
presented to Corporate Select
- To produce on demand written summaries of costs
- To maintain open book accounting, allowing reasonable access to officer’s of the
Council
- To allow reasonable access to the Authority’s auditors both internal and external.
Further assurance is provided by Council officers holding two of the five directorships that
make up the AES Board. The board meets 10 times per year and all significant decisions
of AES are subject to the unanimous agreement of all directors.
Internal Audit is 'good practice compliant' and has a proven track record in planning audit
work to take account of fraud risks and responding appropriately to fraud risks in the
organisation and enhancing controls to protect against the risk of fraud.

8

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Laws and regulations
Matters in relation to laws and regulations
ISA(UK&I)250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.
Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Regulatory Committee, is responsible for ensuring that the Council's operations are
conducted in accordance with laws and regulations including those that determine amounts in the financial statements.

Page 51

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to
fraud or error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required
to make inquiries of management and the Audit and Regulatory Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations.
Where we become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the
noncompliance and the possible effect on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out overleaf together with responses from management.

9

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Impact of laws and regulations
Question

Management response

What arrangements does the Council have
in place to prevent and detect noncompliance with laws and regulations?

The operation of the statutory officer roles (Head of Paid Services, Monitoring Officer and
Chief Financial Officer) help to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. For example,
the Monitoring Officer has the authority to report to Council if he considers that any proposal,
decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration, thereby stopping
the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been considered.
Legal implications are outlined in all committee reports.

Page 52

How does management gain assurance that
all relevant laws and regulations have been
complied with?

The operation of the statutory officer roles (Head of Paid Services, Monitoring Officer and
Chief Financial Officer) help to provide assurance that laws and regulations are complied
with.
The Internal Audit service operates to the standards set out in the “Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards” and the Internal Audit Plan specifically considers compliance with laws and
regulations.
The Council has a well publicised Whistleblowing Policy.

How is the Audit and Regulatory Committee
provided with assurance that all relevant
laws and regulations have been complied
with?

The Chief Financial Officer attends Audit and Regulatory committee meetings to respond to
members enquiries.
Standard reporting formats requires that legal implications are outlined in all committee
reports.
The Audit Manager has a number of alternative reporting lines in the event of breach of law or
regulation, including a right to meet privately with the Chair of the Audit and Regulatory
Committee or the Committee in full, should the situation determine such an approach
necessary.

10

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Impact of laws and regulations
Question

Management response

Have there been any instances of noncompliance or suspected non-compliance
with law and regulations since 1 April
2017, or earlier with an on-going impact on
the 2017/18 financial statements?

Confirmation from the Monitoring Officer, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Audit Manager, Legal &
Elections Services Manager and Finance and Procurement Manager has been obtained that
no instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations have
been identified during 2017/18.

What arrangements does the Council have
in place to identify, evaluate and account
for litigation or claims?

The Council has embedded systems and procedures in place to deal with litigation and claims
as they emerge (e.g. the “Link Officer” in respect of Ombudsman issues).

Page 53
11

At year end, additional procedures ensure that any such items are reflected in the financial
statements if appropriate. This is incorporated within closedown procedures and includes
specific enquiries of all senior management with a particular emphasis on the Legal & Elections
Services Manager, the Insurance Officer and the Head of Customer Services (responsible for
the Ombudsman related issues).

Is there any actual or potential litigation or
claims that would affect the financial
statements?

Areas of litigation are reported in the Statements where their impact is considered material or
significant to the readers of the statements and the outturn itself.

Have there been any reports from other
regulatory bodies, such as HM Revenues
and Customs which indicate
noncompliance?

No.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Impact of laws and regulations
Question

Management response

What arrangements does the Council have
in place to prevent and detect noncompliance with laws and regulations
within its Group activities?

Alliance Environmental Services Limited [AES] : this joint operation with Staffordshire
Moorlands District Council and ANSA Environmental Services Limited (trading arm of
Cheshire East Unitary Council) is required to produce audited accounts for consolidation in
the Authority’s financial statements. Both the audit opinion and consolidation process provide
assurance as to compliance within the organisation.

Page 54

To facilitate the Authority in preventing and detecting non-compliance with laws and
regulations the Operating Agreement imposes a number of obligations on AES:
- To hold Monthly meetings with representatives of the Council to address operational
matters
- To prepare Statements for inclusion in the Quarterly Financial Performance reports
presented to Corporate Select.
- To produce on demand written summaries of costs.
- To maintain open book accounting, allowing reasonable access to officer’s of the Council
- To allow reasonable access to the Authority’s auditors both internal and external.
Further assurance is provided by Council officers holding two of the five directorships that
make up the AES Board. The board meets 10 times per year and all significant decisions of
AES are subject to the unanimous agreement of all directors.

12

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Going concern
Matters in relation to going concern
ISA(UK&I)570 covers auditor responsibilities in the audit of financial statements relating to management's use of the going concern
assumption in the financial statements.
Going concern is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial statements. Under the going concern assumption, a Council is viewed
as continuing in operation for the foreseeable future with no necessity of liquidation or ceasing trading. Accordingly, the Council’s assets and
liabilities are recorded on the basis that assets will be realised and liabilities discharged in the normal course of business.

Page 55

The code of practice on local authority accounting requires an authority’s financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis.
Although the Council is not subject to the same future trading uncertainties as private sector entities, consideration of the key features of the
going concern provides an indication of the Council's financial resilience and is good practice.
As auditor, we are responsible for considering the appropriateness of use of the going concern assumption in preparing the financial
statements and to consider whether there are material uncertainties about the Council's ability to continue as a going concern that need to be
disclosed in the financial statements. We discuss the going concern assumption with management and review the Council's financial and
operating performance.
Going concern considerations are set out overleaf and management has provided its response.

13

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Going concern considerations
Question

Management response

Does the Council have procedures in place to
assess the Council's ability to continue as a
going concern?

Yes. There is a firmly embedded Financial Planning process, which includes a rolling
four year Medium-Term Financial Plan that is updated two times annually. In addition a
30 year business plan is maintained and continually updated for the Housing Revenue
Account. Other features include CFO assessments and statements regarding budget
estimates and the adequacy of reserves and balances.

Is management aware of the existence of other
events or conditions that may cast doubt on the
Council's ability to continue as a going concern?

No. All such known events are systematically mitigated. For example, budget deficits
are primarily addressed through a well developed approach towards the achievement of
efficiency savings, which has a proven track record of success.

Page 56

In response to the Government 4 year revenue support grant settlement, we submitted
an efficiency plan outlining how the Council will be addressing financial pressures in
accepting the settlement offer (attached to the November 2016 MTFP). Additionally, we
presented a new four year efficiency programme to coincide with the 2017/18 Budget
and updated MTFP presented in February 2018 to outline plans to meet the budget
deficit – for both the general fund and the HRA.
A review of the Council's HRA business plan is continuing to ensure the impact of the
Government rent reduction announcement is mitigated over the 30 year plan and a
number of reports have been presented to the HRA working group throughout 2017/18.
Are arrangements in place to report the going
concern assessment to the Audit Committee?
How has the Audit and Regulatory Committee
satisfied itself that it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements?

14

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

No explicit statement is presented to Audit and Regulatory Committee, however, the
Committee scrutinises the treasury function and so is aware of the liquidity and funding
position of the Authority.
For the 2017/18 presentation of the Statement of Accounts, a going concern assessment
will be reported with reference to the approved Medium Term Financial Plan.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Going concern considerations
Management response

Are the financial assumptions in that report
(e.g., future levels of income and
expenditure) consistent with the Council's
Business Plan and the financial information
provided to the Council throughout the
year?

Yes. Well established quarterly reporting process to councillors, combined with performance
reporting against the Council’s corporate plans and targets serves to inform the development
of the three year Medium term financial plan.

Are the implications of statutory or policy
changes appropriately reflected in the
Business Plan, financial forecasts and
report on going concern?

Yes. For example, the Medium-Term Financial Plan specifically includes consideration of both
national (e.g. statutory) and local (e.g. policy) issues in terms of their potential financial
impact.

Have there been any significant issues
raised with the Audit and Regulatory
Committee during the year which could cast
doubts on the assumptions made?
(Examples include adverse comments
raised by internal and external audit
regarding financial performance or
significant weaknesses in systems of
financial control).

No significant issues have been raised.

Page 57

Question

15

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Going concern considerations
Management response

Does a review of available financial
information identify any adverse financial
indicators including negative cash flow?
If so, what action is being taken to improve
financial performance?

No. Financial information is closely monitored as a matter of routine through firmly established
processes. In addition, regular treasury management reports are presented to Audit
Committee which would highlight any cashflow deficit.

Does the Council have sufficient staff in
post, with the appropriate skills and
experience, particularly at senior manager
level, to ensure the delivery of the Council's
objectives?
If not, what action is being taken to obtain
those skills?

Yes. A service review process has recently been undertaken, with structures created to ensure
services can operate effectively whilst achieving efficiency targets. If and when numbers or
experience is considered lacking, additional resource is brought in from third parties.
Organisational Development is a systematic and managed process.

Page 58

Question

16

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Going concern considerations
Question

Management response

What arrangements does the Council have
in place to ensure that its Group activities
are a Going Concern?

Alliance Environmental Services Limited [AES] : this joint operation with Staffordshire
Moorlands District Council and ANSA Environmental Services Limited (trading arm of
Cheshire East Unitary Council) is required to produce audited accounts for consolidation in
the Authority’s financial statements. Both the audit opinion and consolidation process provide
some assurance as to the organisation being a Going Concern.

Page 59

To facilitate the Authority’s assessment that the joint operation continues to be a going
concern the Services Operating Agreement imposes a number of obligations on AES:
- To hold Monthly meetings with representatives of the Council to address operational
matters
- To prepare Statements for inclusion in the Quarterly Financial Performance reports
presented to Corporate Select.
- To produce on demand written summaries of costs.
- To maintain open book accounting, allowing reasonable access to officer’s of the Council
- To allow reasonable access to the Authority’s auditors both internal and external.
Further assurance is provided by Council officers holding two of the five directorships that
make up the AES Board. The board meets 10 times per year and all significant decisions of
AES are subject to the unanimous agreement of all directors.

17

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Related parties
Matters in relation to Related Parties
For local government bodies, the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires compliance with
International Accounting Standard 24 and disclose transactions with entities/individuals that would be classed as related parties. These may
include:
■ entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by the Council (i.e. subsidiaries);
■ associates and/or joint ventures;

■ an entity that has an interest in the Council that gives it significant influence over the Council;

Page 60

■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and
■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any entity that is a related party of the
Council.
A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the Council's
perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.
ISA (UK&I) 550 covers auditor responsibilities relating to related party transactions.
Many related party transactions are in the normal course of business and may not carry a higher risk of material misstatement. However in
some circumstances the nature of the relationships and transaction may give rise to higher risks.
ISA (UK&I) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that
you have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make
in the financial statements are complete and accurate.
Related party considerations have been set out overleaf and management has provided its response.

18

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Related parties consideration
Management response

What controls does the Council have in
place to identify, account for, and
disclose related party transactions and
relationships?

A number of arrangements are in place for identifying the nature of a related party and reported
value including:
• Maintenance of a Register of interests for Members, a register for pecuniary interests in
contracts for Officers and Senior Managers requiring disclosure of related party transactions.
• Annual return from senior managers/officers and members requiring confirmation that read and
understood the declaration requirements and stating details of any known related party
interests.
• Review of in-year income and expenditure transactions with known identified related parties
from prior year or known history.
• Review of related information with subsidiaries, companies and joint ventures, e.g. accounts.
• Review of the accounts payable and receivable systems and identification of amounts paid
to/from assisted or voluntary organisation
• Review of year end debtor and creditor positions in relation to the related parties identified.
• Review of minutes of decision making meetings to identify any member declarations and
therefore related parties.

Page 61

Question

19

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Related parties consideration
Question

Management response

What arrangements does the Council
have in place to ensure that its Group
activities correctly identify and account
for related party transactions?

Alliance Environmental Services Limited [AES: this joint operation with Staffordshire Moorlands
District Council and ANSA Environmental Services Limited (trading arm of Cheshire East Unitary
Council) is required to produce audited accounts for consolidation in the Authority’s financial
statements. Both the audit opinion and consolidation process provide some assurance as to the
organisation correctly accounting for related party transactions.

Page 62

To facilitate the Authority’s checking of the treatment of related party transactions the Services
Operating Agreement imposes a number of obligations on AES:
- To hold Monthly meetings with representatives of the Council to address operational matters
- To prepare Statements for inclusion in the Quarterly Financial Performance reports presented
to Corporate Select.
- To produce on demand written summaries of costs.
- To maintain open book accounting, allowing reasonable access to officer’s of the Council
- To allow reasonable access to the Authority’s auditors both internal and external.
Further assurance is provided by Council officers holding two of the five directorships that make
up the AES Board. The board meets 10 times per year and all significant decisions of AES are
subject to the unanimous agreement of all directors.

20

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Related parties considerations
Question

Management response

Who have the Council identified as
related parties?

People who are regarded as related parties are:
• Elected members - Responsible for the direct control of the policies of the authority
• Chief Executive, the Executive Directors and other Senior Officers, as key management
personnel that have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the authority.
• Members of the families and households of members and officers with the ability to influence
members or officers

Page 63

Entities that are regarded as related parties are:
• Central government - Has effective control over local authorities, as authorities are incapable
of acting without statutory authority. Able to limit possibility of independent action by specifying
transactions and the terms on which they are concluded.
• Other public bodies subject to common control by central government
• The Council's strategic alliance partner – Staffordshire Moorlands District Council
• Alliance Environment Services (established 2017/18) – an entity over which the Council has
joint control
• Partnerships, companies, trusts or any entities in which members/officers or a member of their
close family or the same household has a controlling interest.
NB precepting relationships and the Council's relationship with the pension fund (as an admitted
body) are deemed to be agency arrangements and so these are not regarded as related parties.
However the annual Statements present a detailed analysis of transactions between the authority
and both preceptors and the pension fund.

21

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Accounting estimates
Matters in relation to accounting estimates
Local authorities need to apply appropriate estimates in the preparation of their financial statements.
ISA (UK&I) 540 sets out requirements for auditing accounting estimates. The objective is to gain evidence that the accounting estimates are
reasonable and the related disclosures are adequate. Under this standard we have to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
for accounting estimates by understanding how the Council identifies the transactions, events and conditions that may give rise to the need for
an accounting estimate.

Page 64

Accounting estimates are used when it is not possible to measure precisely a figure in the accounts. We need to be aware of all material
estimates that the Council is using as part of its accounts preparation; these are detailed in Appendix A. The audit procedures we conduct on
the accounting estimate will demonstrate that:
• the estimate is reasonable; and
• estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates within the financial statements.
Accounting estimates considerations have been set out overleaf and management has provided its response.

22

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Accounting estimates
Question

Management response

Are management aware of transactions,
events and conditions (or changes in these)
that may give rise to recognition or
disclosure of significant accounting
estimates that require significant
judgement?

The most significant areas of estimation involve measurement of the pension liability and the
valuation of property, plant and equipment:
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.
The valuations of property, plant and equipment reported in the Balance Sheet and the
related depreciation charges are based on an estimation of their value and asset life.

Page 65
23

Are the management arrangements for the
accounting estimates, as detailed in
Appendix A reasonable?

Yes

How is the Audit and Regulatory Committee
provided with assurance that the
arrangements for accounting estimates are
adequate?

A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Authority with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied when estimating the pension liability.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

A firm of qualified valuers is engaged by the Authority to carry out, for the major assets, a
programme of physical valuations to ensure that their carrying values are subject to
professional and independent assessment.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Appendix A - Accounting estimates
Estimate

Property plant &
equipment
valuations

Page 66
24

Method / model used to make
the estimate

Valuations for land and buildings are made
by the external valuer in line with RICS
guidance on the basis of 5 year valuation
with interim reviews. The Council applies a
deminimis threshold of £10,000 in
determining assets to be valued.
Other assets are valued on the basis of
depreciated historic cost as proxy for fair
value as relatively short asset lives before
replacement.
Housing Stock is valued on a Beacon basis
by annual desktop review and then a
physical valuation every 5 years.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Controls used to
identify estimates

Capital Accountant notifies
the valuer of the program
of rolling valuations or of
any conditions that warrant
an interim re-valuation.

Whether
management
have used an
expert

Use of Urban
Vision augmented
with internal
Property Services
(RICS valuer) for
buildings
The overriding requirement valuations.
is that the carrying value is Other assets
not materially different
considered by
from the amount that
Services Manager
would be determined by
and capital
valuation and so the
accountant
Capital Accountant
considers factors (informed
by Property Services
Manager and external
valuer) that would indicate
where a valuation is
required.

Underlying
assumptions:
- Assessment of
degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of
alternative estimates

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

Valuations are made in-line with No
RICS guidance – reliance on
expert. Assumptions are set out
in valuer's report.
For other assets no
revaluations but asset lives
reviewed based on the
operational experience of the
service areas.

Estimate

Estimated
remaining useful
lives of PPE

Method / model used to make
the estimate

The following asset categories have general
asset lives:
• Buildings range 30 to 70 years
• Equipment/ vehicles 3 to 15 years
• Plant 3 to 15 years
• Infrastructure 25 years

Controls used to
identify estimates

Specific asset lives applied
to buildings.
Consistent asset lives
applied to each asset
category.

Page 67
Depreciation &
Amortisation

25

Depreciation is provided for all fixed assets Consistent application of
with a finite useful life on a straight-line basis depreciation method
across all assets

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Whether
management
have used an
expert

Underlying
assumptions:
- Assessment of
degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of
alternative estimates

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

Use of Urban
Vision augmented
with internal
Property Services
(RICS valuer) for
buildings
valuations.
Other assets
considered by
Services Manager
and capital
accountant

The method makes some
No
generalisations. For example,
building lives would vary
depending on the construction
materials used. This life would
be recorded in accordance with
RICS valuation.
Detailed information is included
in the valuers report for each
asset. The lives used for other
assets are based on operational
experience of the service areas.
The asset live is then recorded
in the asset register.

No

The length of the life is
determined at the point of
acquisition or revaluation.
Major components are
depreciated separately.

No

Estimate

Impairments

Page 68
Finance lease
liability

Method / model used to make
the estimate

Controls used to
identify estimates

Whether
management
have used an
expert

Assets are assessed at the year-end for any
indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where indications exist and any possible
differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.

Assets are assessed
at each year-end as to
whether there is any
indication that an asset
may be impaired.
This assessment is made
by the internal valuer for
land and buildings and by
Property Services
Manager and capital
accountant (and other
relevant officers for the
asset type) for other
assets.

Use of Urban
Vision augmented
with internal
Property Services
(RICS valuer) for
buildings
valuations.
Other assets
considered by
Services Manager
and capital
accountant

Valuations are made in-line with No
RICS guidance - reliance on
expert.

At the inception of the lease the liability is
the lower of the fair value of the asset or
present value of the minimum lease
payments. Payments are split between the
finance charge and the element that reduces
the liability.

Finance review contracts
and payments over the deminimus level to ensure
the lease is categorised
correctly as a finance
lease or an operating
lease.

May obtain
guidance to support
lease
classifications.

Assets recognised under
No
finance leases are accounted
for using the policies applied
generally to such assets,
subject to depreciation being
charged over the lease term if
this is shorter than the asset’s
estimated useful life (where
ownership of the asset does not
transfer to the Council at the
end of the lease period).

Calculations supported by
lease documents.

26

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Underlying
assumptions:
- Assessment of
degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of
alternative estimates

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

Estimate

Pension liability

Page 69

Non adjusting
events - events
after the BS date

Bad Debt
Provision.

27

Method / model used to make
the estimate

Controls used to
identify estimates

Whether
management
have used an
expert

The Council is an admitted body to the
Staffordshire Local Government Pension
Scheme. The administering authority (the
County Council) engage the Actuary who
provides the estimate of the pension liability.

Payroll data is provided to Consulting actuary
the Actuary.
Management reconcile this
estimate of contributions to
the actuals paid out in the
year.

S151 Officer makes the assessment. If the
event is indicative of conditions that arose
after the balance sheet date then this is an
unadjusting event. For these events only a
note to the accounts is included, identifying
the nature of the event and where possible
estimates of the financial effect
A provision is estimated using a proportion
basis of an aged debt listing.

Managers notify the s151
officer

This would be
considered on
individual
circumstance.

The finance team obtain
the aged debt listing from
the sales ledger, local
taxation and rental
systems to calculate the
provision

No

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Underlying
assumptions:
- Assessment of
degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of
alternative estimates

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

As disclosed in the actuary's
No
report. Complex judgements
including the discount rate
used, rate at which salaries are
projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on
pension fund assets.
This would be considered on
N/a
individual
circumstance.

Consistent proportion used
across aged debt as per the
Code.

No

Estimate

Provisions for
liabilities.

Page 70
28

Method / model used to make
the estimate

Controls used to
identify estimates

Provisions are made where an event has
Charged in the year
taken place that gives the Council a legal or that the Council becomes
constructive obligation that probably requires aware of the obligation.
settlement by a transfer of economic
benefits, but where the timing of the transfer
is uncertain. Provisions are charged as an
expense to the appropriate service line in the
CI&ES in the year that the Council becomes
aware of the obligation, and are measured at
the best estimate at the balance sheet date
of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation, taking into account relevant risks
and uncertainties.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Whether
management
have used an
expert

No

Underlying
assumptions:
- Assessment of
degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of
alternative estimates

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

Estimated settlements are
No
reviewed at the end of each
financial year – where it
becomes less than probable
that a transfer of economic
benefits will now be required (or
a lower settlement than
anticipated is made), the
provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant
service. Where some or all of
the payment required to settle a
provision is expected to be
recovered from another party
(e.g. from an insurance claim),
this is only recognised as
income for the relevant service
if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received
by the Council.

Estimate

Accruals

Page 71
29

Method / model used to make
the estimate

Finance team collate accruals of expenditure
and income. Activity is accounted for in the
financial year that it takes place, not when
money is paid or received.
While processes and procedures will be
maintained to capture all accruals, resources
will be focused on identifying individual
transactions of £5,000 and above
An Accumulated Absences creditor balance
is at £102,000 to reflect the value of time
owed to employees for accrued holidays,
TOIL (time off in lieu) and flexitime. This
balance is based on an historic value subject
to annual review and amendment where
there have been significant changes in staff
numbers or working patterns

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

High Peak Borough Council 2017/18 | Informing the Risk Assessment

Controls used to
identify estimates

Whether
management
have used an
expert

Review financial systems No
to identify where goods
have been received but not
paid for.
Requests of service
managers to identify any
other goods or services
received or provided but
not paid for , concentrating
on transactions greater
than £5,000.
Review of circumstances
that indicate the approach
to annual leave accrual is
no longer valid.

Underlying
assumptions:
- Assessment of
degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of
alternative estimates
Accruals for income and
expenditure often based on
known values.
Where accruals are estimated
the latest available information
is used.

The value of the accruals below
the threshold of £5,000
identified in prior years is not a
material amount.
The annual leave accrual is
based on historic records. An
annual review will be performed
to assess whether there any
circumstances that mean the
historic calculation of annual
leave is no longer a reasonable
estimate and whether the
survey process needs to be
performed on a partial or
complete basis. Events likely to
trigger such a decision would
be significant changes in staff
numbers or working patterns.

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?
No

Page 72
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Informing the Risk Assessment
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

Agenda Item 9
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit and Regulatory Committee
14th February 2018

TITLE:

Risk Management Update (overview of
strategic, operational and project risks)

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for
Finance & Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

Vanessa Higgins - Information Business
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-specific

Appendices attached:
Appendix A: Strategic Risks (by exception)
Appendix B: Operational Risks (by exception)

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s risk
management arrangements in accordance with generally accepted good
practice.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the committee notes the Council’s current risk position and the mitigation
plans summarised within Appendix A (strategic risks) and Appendix B
(operational risks).

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed
by the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. This report is
based upon the Council’s position as at December 2017.

3.2

The latest analysis of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the Council has
identified and assessed 14 strategic risks, of which 29% are rated as 'high'
and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. The four ‘high’
rated risks are listed in full at Appendix A.

3.3

The Operational Risk Registers reveal that the Council has identified and
assessed 33 operational risks in total, of which 18% are rated as ‘high’ and
therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance thresholds. The six risks falling

Page 73

within the ‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B.
3.4

The new project risk registers (six to date) have risk profiles that are all within
the Council’s tolerance thresholds, with no ‘high’ rated risks:





0% Critical
0% High
18% Medium – 4 risks
82% Low – 18 risks

4.

Evaluation of Options

4.1

There are no options to consider

5.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

5.1

Risk management impacts on all service areas and therefore links to each of
the Council’s Corporate Plan aims.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
None

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies

6.4

Financial Considerations
Effective risk management contributes to financial objectives

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Sustainability
None

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
None

6.8

Risk Assessment
The Council’s Risk Registers are a critical element in the Council’s
Risk Management Framework.

Page 74

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Risk Registers – December 2017

Buxton Town Hall

Information Business Partner
Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk
Tel Ext 4057

Page 75

7.

Background and Introduction

7.1

The Council ensures that it undertakes a deliberate and systematic
identification of the key risks that might prevent, degrade, delay or enhance
the achievement of its objectives and priorities. The Council's Risk
Management Strategy sets out the process for undertaking this on an ongoing
basis.

7.2

In addition to the identification of risks, managers also have to quantify them in
terms of likelihood and potential impact. The risks are then recorded in the
Council's risk registers. These have three aspects – strategic, operational and
project risks.

7.3

Under the Risk Management Strategy, the Council’s ‘risk tolerance’ threshold
is set along the border between ‘medium’ and ‘high’ rated residual risks. The
strategy stipulates that mitigating actions should be identified for all risks that
exceed this threshold.

7.4

The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed
on a quarterly basis and reported into the Corporate Risk Management Group
and the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. The
appendices provide details of all risks that have been rated as ‘high’ or above,
and therefore beyond the Council’s risk tolerance threshold.

8.

Strategic Risks

8.1

The December 2017 analysis of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the
Council has identified and assessed 14 Strategic Risks, of which 29% are
rated as 'high' and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold.
There are also two opportunity risks within the register – New Homes Bonus
and Business Rates Retention - from which the Council is aiming to maximise
the financial opportunities they present for the area.

8.2

The Council’s risk profile is displayed below and is unchanged from the last
reported position in June 2017.

Residual Risk Rating
Critical
High
Medium
Low

High Peak
Risks
1
3
1

Page 76

Alliance
Risks
3
5
1
Total Risks

Total
Risks
4
8
2
14

2

4

5

4

HRA Business
Plan (financial /
regulatory
reform)

3

Medium Term
Financial Plan

Investment
into assets
and long term
planning
Safeguarding
duty
(legal
obligations)

1

2

Likelihood

5

1

Impact
3

8.2

The four high rated risks are mapped on the Risk Matrix above. Financial and
regeneration project type risks still make up the vast majority of risks within the
Strategic Risk Register.

Page 77

9.

Operational Risks

9.1

The December 2017 analysis of the Operational Risk Registers reveals that
the Council has identified and assessed 33 Operational Risks in total, of which
18% are rated as ‘high’ and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance
thresholds. This represents a net increase of two risks, due to the addition of
three new risks within the Operational Services register arising from a recent
audit of Cemeteries (bulleted below) and the removal of the low-rated risk
around new ways of working from the OD & Transformation register.
 New Risk - an incident occurs at one of the Council's cemeteries or a
closed churchyard under the control of the Council
 New Risk - a Council cemetery reaches capacity
 New Risk - burden of increasing number of closed cemeteries
transferring to the Alliance for maintenance responsibilities
 Increased assessment – the Customer Services Carelink risk has been
increased from ‘low’ to ‘medium’ due to an increase in the likelihood risk
assessment. An internal audit will help inform future improvements to
the service.

9.2

The six risks falling within the ‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B. A
full breakdown of the Council’s operational risk profile is given below:
Residual Risk
Rating
Critical
High
Medium
Low

9.3

High Peak Risks
1
2
-

Alliance
Risks
5
8
17
Total Risks

Total Risks
6
10
17
33

The greatest number of operational risks sits within the Operational Services
area, which encompasses waste and recycling; street scene, leisure,
horticulture and the DLO.

Page 78

9.4

An analysis of the alignment of risk to our corporate objectives shows that
most operational risks relate to the use of resources in order to achieve value
for money.

10.

Project Risks

10.1

Projects committed through the Corporate Plan will be included in the strategic
risk register and other start and finish projects are being picked up through the
project risk registers. The alliance is still in the early days of our revised project
management approach and to date has risk assessments for the following
projects:







10.2

Digital Portal
Derbyshire Fraud Initiative
Committee Management System
Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme
Hybrid Mail
Subject Access Requests (NEW)

The project risks identified so far are all below the Council’s tolerance
thresholds with no ‘high’ rated risks:





0% Critical
0% High
18% Medium – 4 risks
82% Low – 18 risks

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

Strategic Risks (by exception)

Page 81

AMT
Owner
Andrew
Stokes

Ref

Risk Description
(vulnerability)
Delivery of MTFP
through the
Efficiency and
Rationalisation
Strategy

Current Controls

Impact

Likelihood

Further Mitigation Plans

Date

Effective programme and project
management methodology for
the transformation programme.
Performance Management
Framework monitors the
achievement of Council Aims.
Nov 17 iteration indicates on
course for yr 1 savings.

4

3

1. ongoing 2. As
per project
milestones 3. Feb
2018

SR10

Safeguarding
children and
vulnerable adults –
fulfilling our legal
duty

5

2

SR11

Impacts of
financial and
regulatory reform
on the HRA
Business Plan

1. Revised Joint Policy in place
for Safeguarding Children and
Vulnerable Adults. 2. Council is
a member of the District
Safeguarding Network (Staffs).3
All staff have been briefed on
the safeguarding policy and
identified staff have received
level 1 training in safeguarding
children. 4. Training on adult
safeguarding has been provided
to key staff members.
1. Engaged Sector to advise on
the HRA Business Plan 2.
Increased levels of assurance
on Capital investment
programme 3. Strategic review
of housing management function
completed. 4. In depth review of
capital programme 5. Signed up
to voluntary code of practice. 6.

1. Monthly Transformation Board
meetings to oversee key projects
linked to the efficiency and
rationalisation strategy e.g. housing
delivery programmes to facilitate
growth and the various income
generation projects. 2. Accelerated
procurement projects including
environmental services, leisure
centres and facilities management.
3. Next iteration of the MTFP will be
Feb 2018.
There is an ongoing rolling
programme of actions in place and
District Network meetings are
attended on a regular basis.

Mark
Trillo

Andrew
Stokes

4

4

1. Collate stock condition survey
results and assess financial
performance of housing category
types. 2. HRA review underway –
focusing on all areas of the HRA
with assigned stream leads over a
12 month period. Reporting
mechanism in place to a
Member/Officer working group.

1. Underway
Underway

SR2

Ongoing

2.

Strategic Risks (by exception)

AMT
Owner

Ref

Risk Description
(vulnerability)

Current Controls

Impact

Likelihood

Further Mitigation Plans

Date

5

3

Complete essential H&S and
structural works to properties whilst
the strategic review is ongoing. A
12 month process to undertake the
analysis and decisions required for
the implementation of a new
strategy. The health and safety
works are on-going and the asset
management plan is currently being
finalised.

April 2018

Full self assessment against the
voluntary code of practice via
the newly established working
group. 7. Action Plan from
Position Statement with reestablished priorities for the
HRA. 8. Short term deficit
eliminated. 9. HRA Business
Plan and Financial Improvement
Plan agreed. 10. site stock
condition surveys completed.

Page 82

Andrew
Stokes

SR15

Investment into
council assets and
long term planning

The completion of a full building
condition survey of all public
buildings. High level report
issued to Corporate Select in
July 16. Working Group being
established to assist with the
formulation of a new strategic
asset management plan.

Operational Risks (by exception)

Service

Ref

Assets

AS1

Democratic
and
Community

DC1

Page 83

Risk
Description
(vulnerability)
Accuracy of stock
condition data across
public buildings and
housing stock

Current Controls

Impact

Likelihood

Further Mitigation Plans

Date

Public buildings surveys
completed and findings
presented July 2016.

4

4

1. Stock Condition
(Housing) to be
completed April
2018.

Breach of equality
regulations

1.Equality impact assessments
undertaken
2.Equalities policy in place
3. Equality impact has been
written into the new project
methodology currently being
introduced.

4

3

1. Housing stock condition
survey approval in July 2016.
2. Working group to be
established to review findings
over the next 12 months.
MTFP approved Feb 2017.
Housing Stock Condition
survey to commence in May
2017
1.Training will be undertaken
with all staff as part of the
training passport initiative
and also with Members. Infoaware training now complete,
this platform will be used in
the new year to launch the
new policy with more detailed
training to be scheduled
throughout 2018.
2.Following organisational
changes, individuals
assigned as Equality
Champions may have
changed. A number have
already undertaken training
and there will be a further
mop up session at the
beginning of 2018.

1. Sept 2018
2. Feb 2018

Operational Risks (by exception)

Service

Ref

Current Controls

Impact

Likelihood

Further Mitigation Plans

Date

Finance and
Procurement

FP1

1. Budget monitoring
2. Efficiency programme
3. Consider latest intelligence
for budget reviews
4.Contingency reserve in place

4

3

Ongoing continual
process

FP2

Pension Liability risk
to budget

4

3

FP3

Treasury
Management
failure(General)

1. Monitoring of pension
liability
2. Careful
consideration of pension cost
implications when awarding
contracts (externalisation of
services)
3. Base budgets on latest
intelligence
4.
Manage pressure through the
Financial Planning process.
5. Close liaison with pensions
authority
6. Careful workforce planning
1. Professional training of staff
2. Professional advice and
support
3. Careful
control of lending list including
investment limits on institutions
through formally adopted
Treasury Management
strategy.
4. Full
compliance with the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy's (CIPFA) Code
of Practice on Treasury
Management

1. Ensure there is a provision
in the General Fund
2. Monitor budget position
and target specific areas
3. Resourcing of efficiency
and transformation process
1. Flag up potential long term
risks and manage carefully
as part of the medium term
financial planning process.
2.The LGPS triennial
valuation outcomes have
been incorporated into the
updated MTFP in Feb 2017.
The next review will take
place in 3 years.

5

2

1. Carry out regular credit
checks and react to latest
developments in treasury
management risk

Ongoing continual
process

Page 84

Risk
Description
(vulnerability)
Risk to income
stream/budgetary
overspend

1. Ongoing
2. Ongoing

Operational Risks (by exception)

Service

Ref

Visitor

V2

Risk
Description
(vulnerability)
Implications of the
closure of the
Octagon

Current Controls

Impact

Likelihood

Further Mitigation Plans

Date

Communications Strategy
around the Octagon closure.
Project Board with relevant
sub-groups.

4

5

Continued hire of marquee
until 31 Dec 17 to act as
substitute venue to hold
events

Octagon work
scheduled to be
completed March
2018

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
14th February 2018
TITLE:

Annual Governance Statement - Progress
against 2016/17 Action Plan

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

Andrew Stokes – Executive Director
(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
Appendix 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2016-17 Action Plan Update
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

Regulation 6 (1) (a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the
Council to conduct a review each financial year of the effectiveness of its
system of internal control and approve an Annual Governance Statement
(AGS).

1.2

The statement needs to be prepared in accordance with proper practices in
relation to accounts and must be approved in advance of the Council
approving the statement of accounts. ‘Proper practices in relation to accounts’
relates to those accounting practices which are contained in a code of practice
or other document which is identified for the purposes of this provision by
regulations made by the Secretary of State. Such guidance is contained in the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) / the Society of
Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) framework and guidance on
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the committee note the progress information contained within this report.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The production of the 2016/17 AGS was undertaken in line with CIPFA
guidance. The process was co-ordinated through a Corporate Governance
Management Group containing the key officers who are given ultimate

Page 87

responsibility for drafting the AGS, evaluating assurances and the supporting
evidence. Once the AGS has been produced it is required to be reviewed and
approved by an independent review body of the Council. Councillors will recall
that this was undertaken by the Audit & Regulatory Committee on 26th July
2017.
3.2

In essence, the AGS is the formal statement that recognises, records and
publishes our governance arrangements as defined in the CIPFA/SOLACE
framework ‘Delivering Good Governance In Local Government’. It is also
important to recognise that the purpose of the AGS is not just to be
‘compliant’, but also to provide an accurate representation of the
arrangements in place during the year and to highlight those areas where
improvement is required. This will also demonstrate to stakeholders what
those arrangements are. An action plan containing all of the required actions
to address identified weaknesses, including the significant issues detailed in
the AGS, was therefore created.

3.3

Progress against the required actions is monitored by the Corporate
Governance Management Group during the following financial year and
details fed into the evidence gathering process for the production of the
following years Annual Governance Statement. The actions identified for each
issue will, if implemented, minimise the risks faced by the Council. No system
of review can give full assurance that all risks have been minimised and all
controls have been operating effectively throughout the year, only reasonable
assurance can be given.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The Annual Governance Statement is the formal statement that recognises,
records and publishes the Council’s governance arrangements as defined in
the CIPFA/SOLACE framework and therefore helps to confirm effective use of
financial and other resources to ensure value for money.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

There are no options to consider.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity
and Equality Policies.

Page 88

6.4

Financial Considerations
In resolving any issues that have arisen from the outcome of the AGS, it
is anticipated that corrective action will be implemented within existing
budgetary provision.

6.5

Legal
Inadequacies in governance arrangements, if not addressed, pose a
litigation risk. The extent and nature of such risks will vary depending on
the nature and extent of the deficiency and the resulting damage/loss (if
relevant). However, the suggested action to be taken to address the
governance weaknesses will assist greatly in minimising the risks and
potential legal implications identified.

6.6

Sustainability
None.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
None.

6.8

Risk Assessment
None.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

CIPFA/SOLACE Publication –
Delivering Good Governance In Local
Government: Framework and
Guidance Notes for English
Authorities 2016 Editions

Buxton Town Hall

Andrew P Stokes
Executive Director (Transformation) &
Chief Finance Officer
Tel: (01538) 395622
e-mail:
andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 89

7.

Background and Introduction

7.1

The AGS is a key corporate document. The most senior officer and the most
senior Councillor (the Leader) have joint responsibility as signatories for the
accuracy and completeness of the AGS. The signatories need to ensure that
the AGS accurately reflects the governance framework for which they are
responsible. In order to achieve this they are likely to rely on many sources of
assurance, such as:


The Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer - the statutory
functions undertaken by these two officers provide a key source of
assurance that the systems and procedures of internal control that are in
operation are effective, efficient and are being complied with on a routine
basis. Both officers are involved in the production of the AGS.



Management – Senior managers are charged with the responsibility of
ensuring that policies within their service area are complied with and are
held accountable for their actions/operations in delivering the service and
achieving objectives. All Directors, Heads of Service and Service
Managers were asked to complete and sign a Managers Assurance
Statement to document the level of assurance that they could give for the
internal controls in place in their service area and their effectiveness with
regard to ensuring accountability, prudence, VFM, data quality, compliance
with policy, Financial Regulations and Procedure Rules, Contract
Procedure Rules and delivery of the Council’s objectives. In providing this
assurance, Directors, Heads of Service and Service Managers were asked
to identify any material issues where they consider the controls are not
adequate or are absent. In providing such assurance statements it is
accepted that Managers can only be expected to give reasonable
assurance for their service area of activity and not a full guarantee.



Internal Audit - The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
defines Internal Audit as “an independent, objective assurance and
consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s
operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness
of risk management, control and governance processes.” Internal Audit
produces an annual report that gives a summary of its work and provides
an independent and objective opinion on the authority’s activities. The
annual report and the work of Internal Audit have been used to inform the
AGS. A review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit has been
undertaken to ensure that reliance can be placed on the work of internal
audit and its contribution to the AGS.



Risk Management – the Council’s strategic risk register details those
issues considered to be a risk which may prevent the Council from
achieving its corporate objectives and outlines the controls in place to
mitigate those risks. This source of assurance has been used to inform the
AGS.

Page 90



External Audit and Other Review Agencies – assurance can be taken
from the work of external bodies such as the Council’s external auditors.
Work undertaken by the external auditors has been used to inform the
Annual Governance Statement.

7.2

At the centre of the production of the 2016/17 statement is a Corporate
Governance Management Group who are given ultimate responsibility for
drafting the AGS, evaluating assurances and the supporting evidence and this
group has been established for a number of years. Each member of the group
has supplied assurances and evidence to support the various elements of the
AGS and action points to address weaknesses, some of which are significant
and warrant specific mention in the AGS itself, have been drawn up in an AGS
Action Plan.

8.

Progress with the Actions Identified in the AGS

8.1

The attached AGS Action Plan (Appendix 1) outlines the progress made
against the required actions as at the end of December 2017. The main
actions that have been completed are summarised below:








8.2

The revised Corporate Plan has been communicated to all staff through
the Core Brief and ‘Keeping You Informed’ and is available on the Intranet.
Corporate fraud policies have been updated and publicised.
The Housing Revenue Account Business Plan Working Group has
continued to implement a programme of work and has made progress in
reducing the deficit on the HRA. The housing stock condition survey has
recently been completed.
A number of major refurbishments have been completed including Phase 1
of Pavilion Gardens and the Opera House, Phase 2 of Pavilion Gardens
works and the Glossop Hall works are about to commence. The capital
programme has been reprofiled to account for these priorities.
In June 2017 the Executive agreed to the Council’s ownership of Alliance
Environmental Services (AES) on the basis of the terms in the
shareholders agreement. They further approved the Services Operating
Agreement for provision of the services to the Council by the Company.
The Council’s waste collection service transferred into the company in
August 2017.

The actions that are still being progressed are summarised below:





The pilot of the Report Management element of the Committee
Management System will be conducted in February 2018.
A new Procurement Strategy will be presented during 2018 and will
consider ‘social value’.
Revised Officer delegations within the Scheme of Delegation are being
drafted.
The Risk Management Strategy will be reviewed and formally approved
and adopted biennially, with the next review scheduled for February 2019.

Page 91






8.3

Further work will be undertaken to develop the approach to identifying and
managing corporate fraud risk to ensure compliance with the Code of
Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014).
The results of the housing stock condition survey will be used to refocus
the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan.
A strategic plan covering all of the Council’s assets is continuing to be
developed and implemented.
Formal transfer of services to AES is expected to be completed by
December 2018.

Councillors are requested therefore to note the content of the attached Action
Plan.

Page 92

APPENDIX 1
HPBC ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17 – ACTION PLAN
Ref.

CP3.1

Page 93

CP4.3

CP4.14

Supporting Principles

Having a clear vision which
is an agreed formal
statement of the
organisation’s purpose and
intended outcomes
containing appropriate
performance indicators
which provides the basis
for the organisation’s
overall strategy, planning
and other decisions
Establishing and
implementing robust
planning and control cycles
that cover strategic and
operational plans, priorities
and targets
Ensuring the achievement
of “social value” through
service
planning
and
commissioning. The Public
Services (Social Value) Act
2012 states that this is “the
additional benefit to the
community…over
and
above the direct purchasing
of goods, services and
outcomes”

Examples of systems,
processes, documentation
& other evidence
demonstrating compliance
Vision used as a basis for
corporate and service
planning

Action/Assurance required

Responsibility

Publication of refreshed
Corporate Plan 2017-2019
after Council approval in
September 2017.

Information
Business Partner

31/12/17

Action Completed.
Revised Corporate Plan
available on intranet and
publicised through Core
Brief.

Calendar of dates for
developing and submitting
plans and reports that are
adhered to

Report Management
element of Committee
Management System to be
implemented

Democratic &
Community
Services
Manager

31/03/18

System pilot to be
conducted in February
2018.

Service plans demonstrate
consideration of “social
value”

To be considered when
new Procurement Strategy
developed.

Finance &
Procurement
Manager

31/03/18

New Procurement
Strategy to be presented
during 2018 – this will be
considered within the
report.

Achievement of “social
value” is monitored and
reported upon

Timescale /
Priority

Position @ 31/12/17

Ref.

CP5.6

CP6.2

Page 94

CP6.10

CP6.11

Supporting Principles

Publishing a statement that
specifies the types of
decisions that are
delegated and those
reserved for the collective
decision making of the
governing body.

Implementing robust and
integral risk management
arrangements and ensuring
that they are working
effectively.
Evaluating and monitoring
the authority’s risk
management and internal
control on a regular basis

Ensuring effective counter
fraud ad anti-corruption
arrangements are in place
Significant governance
issues identified in 2016/17
Annual Governance
Statement.

Ref.

Supporting Principles

Examples of systems,
Action/Assurance required
processes, documentation
& other evidence
demonstrating compliance
Scheme
of
delegation Officer delegations to be
reviewed at least annually reviewed
in the light of legal and
organisational changes.
Standing
orders
and
financial regulations which
are reviewed on a regular
basis.
Risk management
strategy/policy formally
approved and adopted and
reviewed and updated on a
regular basis.
Risk management
strategy/policy has been
formally approved and
adopted and is reviewed
and updated on a regular
basis
Compliance with the Code
of Practice on Managing
the Risk of Fraud and
Corruption (CIPFA 2014)
The implications of the
central government reforms
of housing finance.

Examples of systems,

Responsibility

Timescale /
Priority

Position @ 31/12/17

Democratic &
Community
Services
Manager

31/03/18

Revised
delegations
being drafted.

Review in Feb 2019

Information
Business Partner

31/03/19

Timetable
quoted.

remains

as

Review in Feb 2019

Information
Business Partner

31/03/19

Timetable
quoted.

remains

as

Develop approach to
identifying and managing
corporate fraud risk.

Audit Manager

31/03/18

Relevant Policies in place,
further work ongoing.

The Housing Revenue
Account Business Plan
Working Group has
established a programme
of work which will ensure a
balanced Housing Revenue
Account business plan.

Executive
Director
(Transformation)

31/03/18

The HRA Business Plan
Working
Group
has
continued to implement
the programme of work
and has made progress in
reducing the deficit on the
HRA. The stock condition
survey has recently been
completed and the results
of this will be used to
refocus the Business Plan.
Position @ 31/12/17

Action/Assurance required

Responsibility

Timescale /

Significant governance
issues identified in 2016/17
Annual Governance
Statement.

Page 95

Significant governance
issues identified in 2016/17
Annual Governance
Statement.

processes, documentation
& other evidence
demonstrating compliance
The significant investment
requirements for a number
of the Council’s nonhousing properties.

There is an imminent
change in the operation
model for the Council’s
waste collection, street
cleansing and grounds
maintenance services.

Priority

A strategic plan covering all
of the Council’s assets is
continuing to be developed
and implemented.

Executive
Director
(Transformation)

31/03/18

The new ‘teckal’ company
arrangements will continue
to be developed and
implemented.

Executive
Director
(Transformation)

31/03/18

A number
of major
refurbishments have been
completed
including
Phase 1 of Pavilion
Gardens and the Opera
House,
Phase 2 of
Pavilion Gardens works
and the Glossop Hall
works are about to
commence. The capital
programme has been
reprofiled to account for
these priorities.
In
June
2017
the
Executive agreed to the
Council’s ownership of
AES on the basis of the
terms in the shareholders
agreement. They further
approved the Services
Operating Agreement for
provision of the services to
the
Council
by
the
Company. The Waste
Services transferred into
the company in August
2017 and it is expected
that the rest of the
services will transfer by
December 2018.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
14th February 2018
TITLE:

Treasury Management Update: Mid-Year
Report 2017/18

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor
for Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement
Manager
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A - Treasury Management Mid-Year Update Report – 31st
December 2017
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1.

The purpose of this report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s
treasury management performance in 2017/18 in compliance with the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of
Practice on Treasury Management 2009 and generally accepted good
practice.

2.

Recommendation

2.1.

That the committee note the current treasury management position (as at
31st December 2017).

3.

Executive Summary

3.1.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code
of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 was adopted by the Council in
March 2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements, one of
which is to produce at least one mid-year operational report.

Page 97

3.2.

This report comprises the following:






The latest interest rate forecast;
Investment income earned to date and projected for 2017/18;
The current investment portfolio;
The borrowing portfolio with projected borrowing costs for 2017/18 and
debt rescheduling options; and
Compliance against Prudential and Treasury indicators set in the
Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18.

3.3. The main headlines include:


The Bank of England base rate increased to 0.50% on 2nd November
2017.



The investment income budget is expected to achieve a surplus of
£20,000 as interest rates start to increase following the base rate
increase.



The borrowing costs budget for external borrowing is expected to be
overspent by a net £37,000 on the general fund; and underspent by
£83,000 on the HRA due to savings on external borrowing costs of
£46,000 and the £83,000 change in the split between costs allocated to
the HRA and general fund.



The average return on investments achieved by the Council during the
period to 1st September to 31st December was 0.49%. This compares
favorably to short-term industry benchmarks.



The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £21.9million spread across
eight separate institutions as at 31st December 2017.



The Council’s total level of debt as at 31st August was £72,236,303
(including finance leases) and the average rate of borrowing is 3.80%.



Confirmation was received in November 2017 that the acquisition of
Capita Asset Services by Link Group had formally completed. The new
brand name is Link Asset Services.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1.

An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal.
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the
Council’s main priorities.

Page 98

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1.

This report sets out the Treasury Management position for High Peak
Borough Council for 2017/18 to date and the projected outturn. As such it
is a statement of fact and there are no options.

6.

Implications

6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None
6.2. Workforce
None
6.3. Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.
6.4. Financial Considerations
Financial considerations are embedded throughout the report.
6.5. Legal
None
6.6. Sustainability
None
6.7. Internal and External Consultation
None
6.8. Risk Assessment
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with Treasury
Management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or
deposits. For this reason, the Council engages the services of external
Treasury Management advisors, Link Asset Services (formerly Capita Asset
Services).
Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the
Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. That Strategy
includes a number of risk management features such as the overriding
priority that security of deposit takes precedence over return on investment.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Page 99

Background Papers

Location

Contacts

‘Treasury Management – Governance
and Scrutiny Arrangements’
(Audit & Regulatory Committee
September 2009)

Finance & Performance,
Town Hall, Buxton

Claire Hazeldene
Finance & Procurement Manager
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4186

‘Treasury Management Strategy
2017/18
(Audit & Regulatory Committee
February 2017)

Page 100

APPENDIX A

High Peak Borough Council
Working for our community

Treasury Management Update
31st December 2017

1. Introduction
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates
3. Investment Income
4. Investment Portfolio
5. Borrowing Position
6. Prudential Indicators
7. Treasury Management Advisors
8. MiFID II
9. Revised CIPFA Codes

Page 101

1.

Introduction

1.1. Treasury management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those
risks”.
1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury
Management (2009) which recommends that members should be briefed on
treasury management activities at least twice a year.
1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for
scrutinising the treasury function. The Committee’s role includes approval
of the annual treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational
treasury management reports. Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory
Committee are reported to full Council.
1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2017/18 was
approved by Council on 14th February 2017. This report details treasury
management performance up to the 31st December 2017 and projects
forward for the remainder of the financial year.
Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

2.

2.1. The latest base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast from
the Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), is shown
below:
%
Bank Rate
5yr PWLB
rate
10r PWLB
rate
25yr PWLB
rate
50yr PWLB
rate

Mar18
0.50

Jun18
0.50

Sep18
0.50

Dec18
0.75

Mar19
0.75

Jun19
0.75

Sep19
0.75

Dec19
1.00

Mar20
1.00

Jun20
1.00

Sep20
1.25

Dec20
1.25

Mar21
1.25

1.60

1.70

1.70

1.80

1.80

1.90

1.90

2.00

2.10

2.10

2.20

2.30

2.30

2.20

2.30

2.40

2.40

2.50

2.60

2.60

2.70

2.70

2.80

2.90

2.90

3.00

2.90

3.00

3.00

3.10

3.10

3.20

3.20

3.30

3.40

3.50

3.50

3.60

3.60

2.60

2.70

2.80

2.90

2.90

3.00

3.00

3.10

3.20

3.30

3.30

3.40

3.40

2.2. Link Asset Services undertook its latest review of interest rates forecasts on
7th November following the quarterly Bank of England Inflation Report and
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting. As expected, the MPC raised
Bank Rate by 0.25% to 0.50% on 2nd November 2017. The MPC also gave
forward guidance that they expected to raise Bank Rate by 0.25% only
twice more in the next two years to reach 1.00% by 2020. This was in line
with previous guidance that bank rate would only go up very gradually and
to a limited extent.

Page 102

2.3. The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is probably
currently to the downside due to uncertainties around Brexit; however, given
those uncertainties, there is a wide diversity of possible outcomes for the
strength of economic growth and inflation, and the corresponding speed
with which bank rate could go up.
3.

Investment Income

3.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 31st December 2017 totalled
£64,700. The Council has budgeted to receive £64,720 in investment
income in 2017/18. The budget was set with the expectation that the low
interest environment would continue, however rates have started to
increase following the base rate increase. Therefore a surplus of £20,000 is
anticipated against the budget.
3.2. Average interest rates achieved on the Council’s investments are shown in
the table below; these compare favourably to the LIBID rates, the
recognised industry benchmark rates:
Average
Rate Q1
0.44%
0.55%
0.35%

Average
Rate Q2
0.47%
0.56%
0.35%

Average
Rate Q3
0.49%
0.58%
0.38%

Benchmarks
*LIBID 7 day rate
*LIBID 3 month rate
*LIBID 6 month rate
*LIBID 12 month rate

0.11%
0.19%
0.33%
0.54%

0.11%
0.17%
0.31%
0.54%

0.28%
0.35%
0.44%
0.64%

Base Rate at the end of the period

0.25%

0.25%

0.50%

Comparator
HPBC Average
HPBC long-term fixed (>364 days)
HPBC short-term fixed (<364 days)
HPBC instant access

*LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate

3.3. The table below highlights the level of investment activity and the rates
obtained in the period from 1st September to 31st December 2017.
Investments are made in line with Link’s creditworthiness guidance and the
duration limits applied to each colour banding.
Institution
Royal Bank of Scotland
Goldman Sachs
Lloyds Bank
Lloyds Bank

Country of
Domicile
UK
UK
UK
UK

Instant Access Cash
(Instant Access Accounts & Money
Market Funds)

UK

Amount

Length

Rate

£1,000,000
£2,000,000
£1,150,000
£1,000,000

12 months
6 months
6 months
6 months

0.75%
0.695%
0.65%
0.65%

£3,250,000
(daily average)

Page 103

0.38%

3.4. The rates achieved by the Council vary by institution, by duration of
investment and by the timing of when the investment was made. The
Council’s lending criteria restricts the number of financial institutions that
are eligible to be on the lending list, and the amount that can be invested
with eligible counterparties (and counterparty groups) at any one time.
3.5. The majority of the investment portfolio is held on a short-term basis (<1
year). The Council continues to utilise same day access business accounts,
money market funds, fixed term deposits and certificates of deposits (via
the use of custodian King & Shaxson) which offer competitive rates and
access to banks that would not necessarily deal direct with the Authority for
the sums invested.
4.

Investment Portfolio

4.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s
investment portfolio at 31st December 2017 totalled £21,917,000 as shown
in the table below:
Financial Institution
Bank of Scotland
Goldman Sachs
Santander UK
NatWest Bank
Lloyds Bank
Royal Bank of Scotland
Nationwide Building Society
Money Market Funds
TOTAL

Country of
Domicile
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Amount
£4,250,000
£4,000,000
£4,000,000
£3,267,000
£3,150,000
£2,000,000
£1,000,000
£250,000
£21,917,000

Maximum recommended
lending duration
ORANGE (12 months)
RED (6 months)
RED (6 months)
BLUE (12 months)
ORANGE (12 months)
BLUE (12 months)
RED (6 months)
WHITE (12 months)

4.2. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Link, is shown by
colour banding in the table below:

PURPLE

Maximum
Duration of
Investment
Up to 2 years

ORANGE

Up to 12 months

£4.9m

£3.3m

RED

Up to 6 months

£4.0m

£2.7m

GREEN

Up to 100 days

£3.5m

£2.2m

Up to 1 year

£5.5m

n/a

Up to 1 year

£8.2m

n/a

Up to 1 year
Up to 1 year
Over 1 Year

£4.9m
n/a
£4.0m

n/a
n/a
n/a

Colour Banding

BLUE (Part & fully nationalised
financial institutions)
BLUE (NatWest)
Money Market Funds
WHITE (Lending to the
Government / Local Authorities)

Page 104

UK
Banks

International
Banks

£5.5m

£4.0m

4.3. Group limits are also applied:
Category
BLUE
PURPLE
ORANGE
RED
GREEN

Portfolio
(% of
highest
balance*)
20%
20%
18%
15%
13%

Individual
Principal
Limit

Portfolio %
increased by
50%

Group
Principal
Limit

£5.5m
£5.5m
£4.9m
£4.0m
£3.5m

30%
30%
27%
23%
20%

£8.2m
£8.2m
£7.4m
£6.3m
£5.5m

4.4. The average level of funds available for investment up to 31st December
2017 was £18.3million. Investments are generally made up of short-term
cash and core cash. Short-term cash is dependent on the timing of major
payments e.g. precept payments, salaries and creditor payments, and
major receipts e.g. receipt of grants and council tax direct debits. Core
cash is dependent on capital programme commitments.
4.5. Following a change on 16th November to ‘Positive’ on the Outlook on the
Long Term Rating of Bank of Scotland Plc and Lloyds Bank Plc by Standard
& Poors, one of the three major rating agencies, Link now consider these
two counterparties to be ‘Orange’ and therefore now have a maximum
suggested duration of investment of 12 months.
5.

Borrowing Position

5.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of
the Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to
borrow. Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as
part of the prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management
Strategy Statement.
5.2. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 31st December 2017 is
£72,236,303, as detailed in the table below:
Lender

External
Borrowing

Average
Interest Rate

Maturity period

Public Works Loan Board

£54,025,404

3.76%

between 1 and 50 years

Market Loans

£12,800,000

4.57%

between 5 and 50 years

£5,000,000

2.50%

up to 2 years

n/a

Up to 4 years

Local Authority Loans
Finance Leases
Total

£410,899
£72,236,303

3.80%

5.3. The ‘operational boundary’ (£85,997,000) and ‘authorised limit’
(£88,497,000) indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing
available to the Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of
borrowing is within prudential limits.

Page 105

5.4. The revised capital expenditure budget includes a borrowing requirement of
£3.5m (was £4.7m). Due to changes in the profile of the cash flow relating
to this expenditure, there has been no requirement for this ‘new’ borrowing
to date. The treasury team will continue to monitor the appropriate time to
externally borrow based on the profile of spend and opportunities to
‘internally’ borrow, considering the movement in interest rates and the cost
of carry of any borrowings taken.
5.5. The Council’s general fund and HRA has budgeted to incur £1,425,230 and
£3,381,630 respectively in interest charges and other financing costs in
2017/18. Overall there is a reduction in the interest costs expenditure
forecast for the year of £46,000 due to the delayed external borrowing.
5.6. Under the ‘one pool’ approach to borrowing which the Council adopts, the
share of interest costs attributable to the general fund is forecast to be
£83,000 more than budgeted; with a corresponding underspend on the
HRA. This is due to the repayment of loans during 2016/17, taking the
Council into an under-borrowed position, which reduces the overall interest
rate chargeable to the HRA compared to the original budget (as it now
includes a rate associated with the internal borrowing element, i.e.
investment income foregone, which reduces the overall interest rate
chargeable).
5.7. Therefore the general fund budget for borrowing costs is forecast to be
overspent by a net £37,000 and the HRA budget is forecast to be
underspent by £83,000.
5.8. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure
maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates
are high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans.
Debt Maturity Profile
30,000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
Less than
1 year

1-2
years

2-5
years

6 - 10
years

11- 20
years

Page 106

21 - 30
years

31 - 40
years

41 - 50
years

Greater
than 50
years

5.9. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to
amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the
degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the
risk. The treasury team, along with Link, continually monitor prospects for
debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council.
5.10. No rescheduling has taken place during 2017/18 to date. The Council will
work with Link to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking
account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on early
redemption compared to the potential interest savings.
6.

Prudential Indicators

6.1. The Council has operated within the treasury management and prudential
indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2017/18 and
complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.
7.

Treasury Management Advisors

7.1. The council received confirmation in November 2017 that the acquisition of
Capita Asset Services, formerly part of Capita plc, by Link Group had
formally completed. The new brand name is Link Asset Services. Link is a
market leading provider of technology-enabled solutions in the financial and
corporate markets, has a reputation for innovation, and a strong and loyal
client base.
7.2. David Wheelan, formerly of Capita Asset Services, now the Managing
Director at Link Market Services, confirms that throughout the acquisition
process, Link Group has expressed the importance of business continuity,
service excellence and stability; the business will continue to offer the full
suite of services and the teams who support the Council will remain in place
as the new ownership progresses.
8.

MiFID II

8.1. As reported at the previous Audit & Regulatory Committee on 27th
September 2017, the Council is to opt-up to Elective Professional status
under the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID II) from 3rd
January 2018 in order to allow the Council to continue deal with Money
Market Funds and Certificates of Deposit and be treated as a Professional
client by the Council’s Treasury Management Advisors, Link, and brokers
through whom the Council arranges inter-local authority borrowing.
8.2. The Council submitted applications to all applicable counterparties before
the deadline to confirm intention to opt-up and that the Council meets the
relevant qualitative and quantitative criteria to be considered as a
Professional client, rather than deemed as a Retail client by default.

Page 107

8.3. The Council has now received confirmations that it has been accepted as a
Professional client from various counterparties, including Link. There are
several applications still outstanding as the counterparties have had a
considerable task in assessing the significant amount of applications they
have had to deal with as this legislative change has affected more than just
local authorities. None of the Council’s applications have been refused thus
far and the lack of response in some instances is not affecting the Council’s
access to counterparties or appropriate instruments to date.
9.

Revised CIPFA Codes

9.1. In December, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIFPA) issued a revised Treasury Management Code and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes, and a revised Prudential Code. Both these codes will be
effective for the 2018/19 financial year; therefore some of the changes will
be included in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19.

Page 108

Agenda Item 12
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
14th February 2018
TITLE:

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
(TMSS) 2018/19

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for
Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement
Manager
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner

WARDS:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A - Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19
1.

Purpose of the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to allow members of the Committee to
consider and endorse the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for
2018/19, ensuring that its capital and treasury activities for the next four
years are affordable and properly managed.

2.

Recommendation

2.1.

That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS)
2018/19 is recommended to Council for approval.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1.

The Council is required, in accordance with the Local Government Act
2003, to produce an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement
before the commencement of each financial year.

3.2.

The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the
Council to ‘have regard to’ the Chartered Institute of Public Finance &
Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code
of Practice. The Council is required to set prudential and treasury

Page 109

indicators for the next four years to ensure that the Council’s capital
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.
3.3.

The 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy Statement comprises three
principal areas:
a.



b.





c.




Capital Programme (section 6)
The capital plans and the prudential indicators
The minimum revenue provision (MRP) Policy
Treasury Management (section 7)
Current Treasury position
Treasury Indicators
Prospects for Interest Rates
The Borrowing Strategy
The Annual Investment Strategy (section 8)
Investment Policy
Creditworthiness Policy
Investment Income

3.4.

Members are asked to note the controls that have been put in place to
manage the Council’s treasury management risks and activities and to
endorse the Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1.

Effective treasury management is critical to the safeguarding and
management of the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the Council’s
corporate priorities.

5.

Options

5.1.

This report sets the proposed treasury management approach based upon
the Council’s financial plans.

6.

Implications

6.1.

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

Page 110

6.2.

Workforce
None

6.3.

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's equality
and diversity policies.

6.4.

Financial Considerations
Financial considerations are embedded throughout the report.

6.5.

Legal
None

6.6.

Sustainability
None

6.7.

Internal and External Consultation
None

6.8.

Risk Assessment
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with treasury
management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/or
deposits.
The Council has engaged Link Asset Services (formerly Capita Asset
Services) as its treasury management advisors.
Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the
Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy, which is the
subject of this report. The Strategy includes a number of risk management
features such as the overriding priority that security of deposit takes
precedence over return on investment.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer
Background Papers

Location

Contacts

‘Treasury Management –
Governance and Scrutiny
Arrangements’
(Audit & Regulatory
Committee Sep 09)

Town Hall, Buxton

Claire Hazeldene
Finance & Procurement Manager
Tel. 01538 395400 #4191
Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Tel. 01538 395400 #4186

Page 111

APPENDIX A

Treasury Management Strategy
Statement
Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue
Provision Policy Statement

2018/19

Page 112

1.

Introduction

1.1.

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly
means that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of
the treasury management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is
adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus
monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments
commensurate with the Council's low risk appetite, providing adequate
liquidity initially before considering investment return.

1.2.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the
funding of the Council's capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide
to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow
planning to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending
obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve arranging
long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council
risk or cost objectives.

1.3.

Treasury Management is defined by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as “The management of the local
authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks.” The Council’s Treasury Management Policy
Statement is included at Annex 1.

2.

Reporting Requirements

2.1.

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main
reports each year. The three main reports are:
a. Treasury Strategy, which looks forward at least three years and
includes:
 Treasury Management Strategy, explaining how the investments
and borrowings are to be organised, including treasury indicators;
 The Council’s capital plans, including prudential indicators;
 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy, stating how residual
capital expenditure is charged to revenue over time; and
 Investment Strategy, stating the parameters on how investments
are to be managed.
b. Mid-Year Treasury Management Report, which updates members on
treasury activities during the financial year and provides for revisions to
the Treasury Strategy and indicators as necessary.

Page 113

c. Annual Treasury Report, which provides the outturn for the previous
financial year, summarises the treasury activity for that year and
includes a full listing of actual prudential indictors.
2.2.

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement contained in this Appendix
addresses the first of these requirements.

2.3.

The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for
scrutinising the treasury function prior to reports being formally approved
at Council.

2.4.

The respective roles & responsibilities of the Council, its Audit &
Regulatory Committee and the Section 151 Officer are noted in Annex 2.

2.5.

Capital Strategy – In December 2017, CIPFA issued revised Prudential
and Treasury Management Codes. As from 2019/20, all local authorities
will be required to prepare an additional report, a Capital Strategy report,
which is intended to provide the following:




A high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services;
An overview of how the associated risk is managed; and
The implications for future sustainability.

2.6.

The Capital Strategy will include capital expenditure, investments and
liabilities and treasury management in sufficient detail to allow all
members to understand how stewardship, value for money, prudence and
affordability will be secured. Annex 3 includes a statement relating to
management practices for non-treasury investments as part of the new
requirements.

2.7.

Many of these requirements are already met through the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement and the Medium Term Financial Plan,
however these will be reviewed to be expanded where required to be in
place from 2019/20.

3.

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19

3.1.

The 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy Statement comprises the
following principal elements:
Capital Programme
(section 6)

Capital plans and the prudential indicators
Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy

Treasury Management
(section 7)

Current treasury position
Treasury indicators
Prospects for interest rates

Page 114

The borrowing strategy
The Annual
Investment Strategy
(section 8)

Investment policy
Creditworthiness policy
Investment income

3.2.

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement meets the requirements of
the Local Government Act 2003, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code, Communities and Local
Government (CLG) MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management
Code and Communities and CLG Investment guidance.

4.

Training

4.1.

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer (the Chief Finance
Officer) to ensure that Members and Officers with responsibility for
treasury management receive adequate training. Training is particularly
important for the Members who are responsible for the scrutiny of the
Council’s treasury management. Training was provided for new Members
of the Audit Committee in July 2015.

4.2.

Any training requirements arising from skills assessments completed by
Members of the Audit Committee will be incorporated into a training plan –
including any treasury management training needs.

5.

Treasury Management Consultants

5.1.

The Council has appointed Link Asset Services: Treasury solutions
(formerly Capita Asset Services) as its external treasury management
advisor - providing the Council with access to specialist skills and
resources.

5.2.

The Council recognises that the responsibility for treasury management
decisions remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that
undue reliance is not placed upon our external service providers.

5.3.

It also recognises that there is a value in employing external providers of
treasury management services in order to acquire access to specialist
skills and resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of appointment
of treasury advisors and the methods by which their value will be
assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular
review.

Page 115

6.

The Capital Programme & Prudential Indicators
Capital Expenditure

6.1.

The capital expenditure prudential indicator comprises a summary of the
Council’s capital programme, which is a key driver of treasury
management activity.

6.2.

The table below summarises the Council’s capital expenditure plans and
how these plans are to be financed. Any shortfall of resources results in a
funding borrowing need:

Capital
Expenditure:
General Fund
Housing Revenue
Account
Financed by:
Capital Receipts
Capital Grants
Capital Reserves
HRA Revenue
Contribution
Net Financing
Need for Year

2016/17
Actual
£

2017/18
Estimate
£

5,091,000

8,323,000

1,804,000

2018/19
Estimate
£

2019/20
Estimate
£

2020/21
Estimate
£

2021/22
Estimate
£

8,089,000

7,741,000

5,207,000

6,889,000

4,176,000

3,938,000

3,805,000

1,271,000

2,953,000

3,287,000

4,147,000

4,151,000

3,936,000

3,936,000

3,936,000

344,000
815,000
2,057,000
909,000

531,000
509,000
2,099,000
1,659,000

1,108,000
483,000
2,099,000
1,745,000

848,000
421,000
2,099,000
1,776,000

850,000
421,000
2,099,000
1,837,000

750,000
421,000
2,099,000
1,837,000

966,000

3,525,000

2,654,000

2,597,000

0

1,782,000

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
6.3.

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR). The CFR is the total outstanding capital expenditure
which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources.
This is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need.

6.4.

The CFR increases each time the Council procures capital expenditure
that it does not immediately pay for (i.e. the CFR increases when its
expenditure is financed through borrowing).

6.5.

Local authorities are required each year to set aside some of their
revenues as provision for debt repayment. This is known as the Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP). The CFR is reduced each year by MRP. Each
year’s borrowing need is divided by the life of the assets for which
borrowing was undertaken, resulting in an annual charge to revenue, and
reduction in the Council’s CFR.

Page 116

6.6.

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. finance leases).
Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council's borrowing
requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the
Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes. The
Council had £410,000 of such schemes within the CFR at 1st April 2017.

6.7.

The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement is shown in the table below:
2016/17
Actual
£

2017/18
Estimate
£

2018/19
Estimate
£

2019/20
Estimate
£

2020/21
Estimate
£

2021/22
Estimate
£

CFR – non housing

21,675,000

24,364,000

26,147,000

27,833,000

26,919,000

27,875,000

CFR – housing

57,108,000

55,859,000

54,859,000

53,859,000

52,859,000

51,859,000

78,783,000

80,223,000

81,006,000

81,692,000

79,778,000

79,734,000

(1,138,000)

1,440,000

783,000

686,000

(1,914,000)

(44,000)

Capital Financing Requirement

Movement in CFR
Represented by:
Net financing need for the year

966,000

3,525,000

2,654,000

2,597,000

0

1,782,000

Less Minimum Revenue
Provision

(2,104,000)

(2,085,000)

(1,871,000)

(1,911,000)

(1,914,000)

(1,826,000)

Movement in CFR

(1,138,000)

1,440,000

783,000

686,000

(1,914,000)

(44,000)

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement
6.8.

The Council is required each year to set aside some of its revenues as
provision for debt repayment. This essentially allows to Council to “pay off”
an element of the Capital Financing Requirement annually through a
revenue charge known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).

6.9.

The MRP was previously defined by statute with regulations providing for
MRP as a 4% charge in respect of the amount of the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR). Under current regulations the rules have been
replaced with a general duty for a local authority to make an MRP charge
to revenue which it considers to be prudent. The regulation does not itself
define “prudent provision”. However, guidance has been issued specifying
methods for MRP calculation which the Secretary of State considers to be
prudent thereby effectively determining prudent provision.

Page 117

6.10. The Department of Communities and Local Government regulations
require the full Council to approve an MRP Statement in advance of each
year. It is recommended that the Council apply MRP to capital expenditure
funded by borrowing under the ‘Asset Life Method’: which calculates the
MRP charge based on the estimated life of the asset for which the
borrowing is undertaken.
6.11. MRP applied to the HRA capital financial requirement is on a voluntary
basis. The Council currently applies Minimum Revenue Provision to
borrowing related to the 2011/12 HRA Reform settlement payment over
the period of the HRA business plan (30 years). For each year from
2018/19 to 2021/22 this is expected to be £1million per annum (reduced
from current £1.2million per annum) with the option to apply any surpluses
on the HRA account as an additional MRP. This remains under review as
part of the HRA Financial Improvement Plan.
Use of the Council’s Resources and Investment Position
6.12. The Council builds up capital and revenue reserves as necessary for
future application. The application of these resources to either finance
capital expenditure or to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year
from new sources (for example, asset sales, revenue surpluses).
Reserves are invested, pending application, to earn a return which
supplements the revenue budget.
6.13. An estimate of the amount available at year end for investment is shown in
the table below:
2016/17
Actual
£
6,129,000

2017/18
Estimate
£
6,774,000

2018/19
Estimate
£
4,967,000

2019/20
Estimate
£
4,315,000

2020/21
Estimate
£
4,502,000

2021/22
Estimate
£
4,805,000

11,251,000

12,266,000

12,442,000

12,838,000

13,297,000

13,795,000

17,380,000

19,040,000

17,409,000

17,153,000

17,799,000

18,600,000

(524,000)

-

-

-

-

-

(Under)/over
borrowing

(6,547,000)

(7,112,000)

(4,900,000)

(3,094,000)

(1,253,000)

(4,957,000)

Expected
investments

10,309,000

11,928,000

12,509,000

14,059,000

16,546,000

13,643,000

General Fund
Reserves
Housing Revenue
Account
Total core funds
Working capital *

* Shown as ‘0’ for estimation purposes as dependent on the value of creditors/debtors at year end

Page 118

Affordability Prudential Indicators
6.14. The previous sections outline the Council’s capital expenditure plans and
funding requirements. This section assesses the affordability of capital
investment plans and the impact on the Council’s overall finances.
Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
6.15. This indicator calculates the cost of capital (borrowing costs net of
investment income) as a percentage of the Council’s net revenue stream
(council tax/business rates receipts - General Fund; rental income - HRA).
2016/17
Actual

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

General Fund

15%

15%

20%

18%

17%

16%

HRA*

15%

14%

13%

12%

12%

11%

* includes the annual voluntary MRP charge

HRA debt per dwelling
6.16. The indicator in the table below shows the level of HRA debt per dwelling:

HRA debt (£)

2016/17
Actual

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

57,108,000

55,859,000

54,859,000

53,859,000

52,859,000

51,859,000

3,991

3,949

3,929

3,909

3,889

3,869

14,309

14,145

13,963

13,778

13,592

13,404

HRA dwellings (no.
estimated)
Debt per dwelling (£)

Interest payable & interest receivable
6.17. Given the capital projections above, interest payable & interest receivable
budgets for the next four years are forecast as follows:
2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

Borrowing Costs
(General Fund)

£1,694,500

£1,827,150

£1,965,230

£1,993,640

Borrowing Costs (HRA)

£1,964,211

£1,883,812

£1,880,740

£1,892,176

Investment Income

(£139,940)

(£206,060)

(£312,810)

(£371,400)

Page 119

7.

Treasury Management

7.1.

The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is
organised so that sufficient cash is available to service its plans. This will
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans
require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. This strategy
covers the relevant treasury indicators and the current and projected debt
and investment positions.
Current Debt Position

7.2.

The Council’s debt position at 31st March 2017 and its debt forecasts
going forward are summarised below. The table shows the actual external
debt against the underlying borrowing need (the Capital Financing
Requirement) highlighting any under or over borrowing.
March 17
Actual
£

March 18
Estimate
£

March 19
Estimate
£

March 20
Estimate
£

March 21
Estimate
£

March 22
Estimate
£

71,825,000

72,825,000

75,925,000

78,525,000

78,525,000

74,777,000

411,000

286,000

181,000

73,000

0

0

Gross Debt at 31st
March

72,236,000

73,111,000

76,106,000

78,598,000

78,525,000

74,777,000

Change in Debt position

(9,894,000)

875,000

2,995,000

2,492,000

Capital Financing
Requirement

78,783,000

80,223,000

81,006,000

81,692,000

(Under) / over borrowing

(6,547,000) (7,112,000) (4,900,000) (3,094,000) (1,253,000) (4,957,000)

External Borrowing
Other long-term liabilities
(Finance Leases)

(73,000) (3,748,000)
79,778,000

79,734,000

7.3.

The Council is required to ensure that its Gross Debt does not, except in
the short term, exceed the total of the Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR) in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for
the current year and the following two financial years. This allows some
flexibility for borrowing in advance of need for future years, but ensures
that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.

7.4.

The Council is complying with this indicator in the current year and does
not envisage difficulty in complying over the life of the Medium Term
Financial Plan. This view takes into account current and future proposals
with regard to the capital programme.

Page 120

Treasury Indicators - Limits to Borrowing Activity
7.5.

The Council sets limits to ensure that the revenue consequences of the
capital programme on external borrowing remain affordable.
Operational Boundary

7.6.

This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally expected to
exceed. This represents the Capital Financing Requirement plus an
additional allowance to cover short-term liquidity requirements.
2017/18
Estimate
£

2018/19
Estimate
£

2019/20
Estimate
£

2020/21
Estimate
£

2021/22
Estimate
£

80,223,000

81,006,000

81,692,000

79,778,000

79,734,000

4,440,000

4,618,000

4,803,000

4,995,000

5,195,000

84,663,000

85,624,000

86,495,000

84,773,000

84,929,000

Operational boundary
Capital Financing
Requirement
Allowance for borrowing to
cover short-term cash flow*
Total Gross Debt

* Amount required in short-term to cover precepts (the highest cash outflow)

Authorised Limit for External Debt
7.7.

This indicator is the statutory limit set by the Council under Section 3 (1) of
the Local Government Act 2003 beyond which external debt is prohibited.
This limit needs to be set or revised by full Council:
2016/17
Estimate
£

2017/18
Estimate
£

2018/19
Estimate
£

2019/20
Estimate
£

2020/21
Estimate
£

84,663,000

85,624,000

86,495,000

84,773,000

84,929,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

87,163,000

88,124,000

88,995,000

87,273,000

87,429,000

Authorised limit

Operational Boundary
‘Headroom’
Total Gross Debt

HRA Debt Limits
7.8.

The Council is subject to HRA Debt Limits under the HRA self-financing
regime:

HRA Debt Cap

2017/18
Estimate
£
68,233,000

2018/19
Estimate
£
68,233,000

2019/20
Estimate
£
68,233,000

2020/21
Estimate
£
68,233,000

2021/22
Estimate
£
68,233,000

HRA CFR

55,859,000

54,859,000

53,859,000

52,859,000

51,859,000

HRA Headroom*

12,374,000

13,374,000

14,374,000

15,374,000

16,374,000

HRA Debt Limit

*subject to the stock condition survey information

Page 121

Prospects for Interest Rates
7.9.

The table in Annex 4, provided by Link, draws together a number of
current City forecasts for short term (Bank Rate) and borrowing rates. The
table below summarises Link’s view on average interest rates:

7.10. The expectation from Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) forward
guidance is that Bank Rate will be increased only twice more by 0.25% by
2020 to reach 1.00%. Link forecasts that there will be 0.25% increases in
November 2018, November 2019 and again in August 2020.
7.11. The overall longer run trend is for PWLB borrowing rates to rise, albeit
gently, though these can be subject to exceptional levels of volatility from
time to time due to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis and emerging
market developments. Economic and interest rate forecasting remains
difficult with so many external influences weighing on the UK.
7.12. The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is probably to
the downside, particularly with the current level of uncertainty over the
final terms of Brexit. Risks include:
 Bank of England Bank Rate increases happen too quickly causing UK
economic growth and increases in inflation to be weaker than currently
anticipated.
 The outcome of various elections throughout Europe.
 Resurgence of Eurozone sovereign debt crisis.
 Geopolitical risks in North Korea, Europe and the Middle East.
Borrowing Strategy
7.13. The majority of the Council’s capital financing requirement is currently fully
funded in the majority by external borrowing and finance lease
arrangements and maintains a small under-borrowed position.
7.14. As highlighted above, the Council has an estimated total Net Financing
Requirement of £7,033,000 for the four years ending March 2022, which is
fully offset by Minimum Revenue Provision of £7,522,600 as shown in the
table below.

Page 122

2018/19
Estimate
£
Net financing need
Minimum Revenue Provision

2019/20
Estimate
£

2020/21
Estimate
£

2021/22
Estimate
£

Total
£

2,654,000

2,597,000

0

1,782,000

7,033,000

(1,871,000)

(1,911,000)

(1,914,000)

(1,826,000)

(7,522,000)

783,000

686,000

(1,914,000)

(44,000)

(489,000)

7.15. The strategy assumes there will be some ‘new’ borrowing during 2017/18,
2018/19 and 2019/20 to support the net financing need occurring in those
years. There is also £5million of existing long term debt maturing during
2018/19, which the strategy anticipates will be partially refinanced during
the year. The table at 7.2 shows that the Council is in an ‘under-borrowed’
position for the life of the Medium Term Financial Plan.
7.16. The capital financing requirement will be closely monitored in order to
make a decision on refinancing prior to maturity. Interest rate forecasts
will also be monitored to identify any opportunities to refinance maturing
debt in advance to reduce interest charges in the long-term.
Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need
7.17. The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its need purely to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.
7.18. The Council however may consider borrowing in advance to protect it from
higher borrowing costs within approved Capital Financing Requirement
estimates to finance new capital expenditure or refinance existing loans.
This will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to
prior appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year reporting
mechanism.
Debt Rescheduling
7.19. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as
to amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter
the degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing
the risk. The treasury team, supported by the Council’s treasury advisors,
will monitor prospects for debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial
benefit to the Council.

Page 123

Maturity Structure of Borrowing
7.20. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed
rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower
limits. The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indictors and
limits:
Maturity Structure of borrowing* 2018/19 (fixed interest rates)
Lower
Upper
30%
Under 12 months
0%
%
12 months to 2 years
0%
30%
2 years to 5 years
0%
40%
5 years to 10 years
0%
60%
10 years and above
0%
90%
*external debt only (excludes finance leases)

Maturity Structure of borrowing* 2018/19 (variable interest rates)
Lower
Upper
100%
Under 12 months
0%
%
12 months to 2 years
0%
50%
2 years to 5 years
0%
0%
5 years to 10 years
0%
0%
10 years and above
0%
0%
*external debt only (excludes finance leases)

Control of Interest Rate Exposure
7.21. The Council reviews and manages the interest rate exposure of both
borrowing and investments through the borrowing and investment
strategies included in this document. Officers will monitor the balance
between variable and fixed interest rates to ensure the Council is not
exposed to adverse fluctuations in fixed or variable interest rate
movements.
8.

Annual Investment Strategy
Investment Policy

8.1.

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on
Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the CIPFA Treasury
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes 2017 (“the CIPFA TM Code”).

8.2.

The Council’s principal investment priorities are the security of capital and
the liquidity of its investments. In addition to this, the Council will aim to
achieve the optimum return on its investments commensurate with proper
levels of security and liquidity.

Page 124

8.3.

To minimise the risk to its investments, the Council applies minimum
acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy
conterparties which also enables diversification and thus avoidance of
concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the
Short Term and Long Term ratings.

8.4.

Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is
important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a
micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve
this consideration, the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a
monitor on market pricing such as ‘credit default swaps’ and overlay that
information on top of the credit ratings.

8.5.

The investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are
listed in Annex 5 under the headings, ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’
Investments.

8.6.

Counterparty limits will be set as part of the Treasury Strategy and
maintained as part of the Council’s treasury management practices.

8.7.

The Council will report on its investment activity in its Annual Treasury
Report at the end of the financial year.

8.8.

Under the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID II)
implemented on 3 January 2018, the Council has opted-up to Elective
Professional status with applicable counterparties to allow the Council to
continue to deal with Money Market Funds and Certificates of Deposit and
be treated as a Professional client.
Creditworthiness Policy

8.9.

This Council employs the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset
Services. This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach
utilising credit ratings from three main credit rating agencies – Fitch,
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. The credit ratings of counterparties are
supplemented with the following overlays:




Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely
changes in credit ratings; and
Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most
creditworthy countries.

Page 125

8.10. Credit watches and outlooks are issued by the ratings agencies. ‘Credit
watches’ are considered short-term actions, whereas ‘outlooks’ are
considered over a longer term time horizon. Link includes the release of a
negative or positive watch/outlook in its creditworthiness analysis.
8.11. A ‘Credit Default Swap’ is a contract between two counterparties in which
the buyer of the contract makes quarterly payments to the seller of the
contract in exchange for a payoff if there is a credit event of the reference
entity. The contract essentially gives protection or ‘insurance’. Therefore,
CDS spreads provide perceived market sentiment regarding the credit
quality of an institution and are also used in the creditworthiness analysis
to determine the durational band of investment with a financial institution.
8.12. Link’s creditworthiness model combines credit ratings, credit watches and
outlooks in a weighted scoring system, with an overlay of CDS spreads, to
produce a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative
creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are then used to
determine the duration for investments.
8.13. Only counterparties that fall within a ‘durational band’ will be included on
the Council’s lending list. In conjunction with the recommended durational
limits, the Council has assigned corresponding investment limits to each
banding. The limits have been set separately for UK banks and
International banks.
UK Banks
Category
Yellow*
Purple
Orange
Red
Green
No Colour

Principal
Limit
£6.0m
£6.0m
£5.4m
£4.5m
£3.9m
-

Maximum
Length
Up to 5 years
Up to 2 years
Up to 1 year
Up to 6 months
Up to 100 days
Not to be used

Portfolio (% of
highest balance**)
20%
20%
18%
15%
13%
-

* UK Government debt instruments
**assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000

International Banks
Principal
Category
Limit
Purple
£4.5m
Orange
£3.6m
Red
£3.0m
Green
£2.4m
No Colour
-

Maximum
Length
Up to 2 years
Up to 1 year
Up to 6 months
Up to100 days
Not to be used

* assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000

Page 126

Portfolio (% of
highest balance*)
15%
12%
10%
8%
-

8.14. The Council’s lending list includes part- and fully-Nationalised UK banks,
which have been assigned the ‘blue’ category as per Link’s
creditworthiness matrix. This category has been allocated a longer
durational period and higher investment limit since it has strong
Government support. The table below assigns investment limits:
Principal
Maximum
Portfolio (% of
Category
Limit
Length
highest balance*)
Blue
£6.0m
Up to 1 year
20%
NatWest (the Council’s
£9.0m
Up to 1 year
30%
main bank account)
* assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000

8.15. The Council is alerted to changes in ratings and market movements
through its use of the Link creditworthiness service. If a downgrade results
in the counterparty no longer meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, it will
no longer be used for new investments. All ratings will be monitored prior
to any new investments being placed.
Group Limits
8.16. To reduce its risk further the Council has set a group limit for fixed term
deposits in institutions with the same parent. The group limit will increase
the portfolio percentage of the colour band the institution it is rated in at
the time by a further 50% where at least the additional amount is held in
an instant access account:
Category
Blue
Purple
Orange
Red
Green

Portfolio (%
of highest
balance*)
20%
20%
18%
15%
13%

Individual
Principal
Limit
£6.0m
£6.0m
£5.4m
£4.5m
£3.9m

Portfolio %
increased by
50%
30%
30%
27%
23%
20%

Group
Principal Limit
£9.0m
£9.0m
£8.1m
£6.9m
£6.0m

* assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000

Money Market Funds
8.17. The Council has access to several Money Market Funds (MMF) - all of
which are ‘AAA’ rated. A ‘Money Market Fund’ is a pooled vehicle
investing in a number of investment instruments with varying maturity
periods in a number of different countries. Money Market Funds provide
an alternative option for the Council when placing short-term funds and
provide for diversification of the investment portfolio.

Page 127

8.18. The Council has set investment limits in Money Market Funds as follows:
Principal
Maximum
Portfolio (% of
Limit
Length
highest balance*)
Individual MMF
£5.4m
Up to 1 year
18%
Total MMF investments**
£6.9m
Up to 1 year
23%
* assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000
** maximum held in MMF’s at any one time

Country Limits
8.19. A sovereign credit rating is the credit rating of a sovereign entity i.e. a
country. The highest sovereign rating awarded is ‘AAA’. The evolving
regulatory environment, in tandem with the rating agencies’ new
methodologies, means that sovereign ratings are now of lesser
importance in the assessment process and the new regulatory
environment is attempting to break the link between sovereign support
and domestic financial institutions.
8.20. While the Council understands the changes that have taken place, it will
continue to use sovereign ratings of individual counties in addition to credit
ratings when making investment decisions. When investing with
institutions outside the UK, only banks and building societies located in
countries with a minimum sovereign rating of ‘AAA’ will be used. This is in
relation to the fact that the underlying domestic and, where appropriate,
international economic and wider political and social background will still
have an influence on the ratings of a financial institution. There are
currently 10 ‘AAA’ rated countries approved for investments, as follows,
this list will be updated during the year should any sovereign ratings
change:
Australia

Canada

Denmark

Germany

Luxembourg

Netherlands

Norway

Singapore

Sweden

Switzerland

Investment income
8.21. The Council’s in-house managed funds are derived from a core balance
available for capital and revenue funding and day-to-day cash flows. At
31st March 2017 the core balances available for investment were
£17,380,000. Core balances are available for investment in line with the
profile of capital expenditure and requirements of the revenue budget.
Investments are therefore made with reference to the core balance and
cash flow requirements and the outlook for interest rates.

Page 128

Investment Return Expectations
8.22. Bank Rate is forecast to stay flat at 0.50% until quarter 4 2018 and not to
rise above 1.25% by quarter 1 2021. Bank Rate forecasts for financial
year ends (March) are:

March 2018 0.50%

March 2019 0.75%

March 2020 1.00%

March 2021 1.25%
8.23. For 2018/19 the Council has budgeted for an average investment return of
0.66%. The average rates assumed on new investments is as follows:


Fixed Term Investments (3 month to 1 year) 0.72%



Instant Access Business Accounts and short-term fixed
deposits 0.58%.

8.24. The 2018/19 income budget is therefore forecast to be £139,940.
Long-term Investments (greater than 1 year)
8.25. When placing long-term investments with counterparties, the Council’s
liquidity requirements, availability of funds and counterparty eligibility need
to be taken into consideration. The table below sets the limit on the total
principal funds that may be invested for greater than 364 & 365 days.
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 & 365 days

Principal sums invested > 364 &365
days

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£4,000,000

£4,000,000

£4,000,000

£4,000,000

Page 129

ANNEX 1
Treasury Management Policy Statement
In accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, High
Peak Borough Council defines the policies and objectives of its treasury
management activities as follows:
1.

The Council defines its treasury management activities as: “The
management of the authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of
optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

2.

The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control
of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury
management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and
reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk
implications for the organisation, and any financial instruments entered
into to manage these risks.

3.

The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will
provide support towards the achievement of its business and service
objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for
money in treasury management, and to employing suitable
comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the context
of effective risk management.

Page 130

ANNEX 2
Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation
(i) Full Council


receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies,
practices and activities;



approval of annual strategy.

(ii) Audit & Regulatory Committee


approval of/amendments to the Council’s adopted clauses, treasury
management policy statement and treasury management practices;



reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making
recommendations to the responsible body;



budget consideration and approval;



approval of the division of responsibilities;



receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on
recommendations;



approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms
of appointment.

The treasury management role of the section 151 (responsible) officer


recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for
approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting regular treasury management policy reports;



submitting budgets and budget variations;



receiving and reviewing management information reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and
the effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management
function;



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers.

Page 131

ANNEX 3
Management Practices for Non-Treasury Investments
This Council recognises that investment in other financial assets and property
primarily for financial return, taken for non-treasury management purposes,
requires careful investment management. Such activity includes loans supporting
service outcomes, investments in subsidiaries, and investment property
portfolios.
This Council will ensure that all the Council’s investments are covered in the
capital strategy (when implemented from 2019/20), investment strategy or
equivalent, and will set out, where relevant, the organisation’s risk appetite and
specific policies and arrangements for non-treasury investments. It will be
recognised that the risk appetite for these activities may differ from that for
treasury management.
The Council will maintain a schedule setting out a summary of existing material
investments, subsidiaries, joint venture and liabilities including financial
guarantees and the organisation’s risk exposure.

Page 132

ANNEX 4
UK Interest Rate Forecast (Link)

Page 133

ANNEX 5
Specified and Non-Specified Investments
Specified Investments
All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum
of 1 year*, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable.
Investment Instrument*
Debt Management Agency
Deposit Facility (DMADF)
Term deposits – local
authorities
Bridging Loans (Community
Groups within HPBC)
UK Government Gilts and
Treasury Bills
Certificates of deposits or
corporate bonds with banks
and building societies
Term deposits – banks and
building societies
UK (Part-)Nationalised Banks
UK Instant Access Accounts
Money Market Funds (MMF)

Minimum ‘High’ Credit Criteria

Investment Limit**

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Decision made on individual basis
& subject to presentation of
required documents

£100,000 (total
outstanding for all
loans at any one time)

UK Sovereign Rating

n/a

Based on Link Creditworthiness
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK)
Based on Link Creditworthiness
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK)
Based on Link Creditworthiness
analysis. Lowest Band – BLUE
Based on Link Creditworthiness
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN
AAA rated

As per individual /
group lending limits
As per individual /
group lending limits
As per individual /
group lending limits
As per individual /
group lending limits
As per individual /
group lending limits

* If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should not exceed
one year in aggregate
** must conform to both institution and group limits set

Page 134

Non-specified Investments
Non-specified investment instruments are assumed to take on greater risk and
should therefore be subject to greater scrutiny. They include investments that are
for a period of more than one year and instruments that the Council has very
limited experience and expertise in dealing with.
A maximum of £12,000,000 (40% of the projected highest balance) will be held in
aggregate in non-specified investments.
Non-specified Investments
Term deposits – UK government
(maturities in excess of 1 year)
Term deposits – other LAs / Parish
Councils (maturities in excess of a
year)
Term & Callable deposits – banks
and building societies (maturities in
excess of 1 year)

Collateralised Deposit

Commercial Paper

Minimum Credit Criteria

n/a

n/a

Based on Link
Creditworthiness analysis.
Lowest Band – PURPLE
Sovereignty Rating -AAA
Based on Link
Creditworthiness analysis.
Band – YELLOW
Sovereignty Rating -AAA
Based on Link
Creditworthiness analysis.
Lowest Band – GREEN
Sovereignty Rating -AAA

UK Government Gilts – all maturities

Long term AAA

Bonds issued by multilateral
development banks - all maturities

Long term AAA

Bonds issued by a financial institution
which is guaranteed by the UK
government – all maturities

Long term AAA

Sovereign bond issues (i.e. other than
the UK govt) – all maturities

Long Term AAA

Treasury Bills – all maturities

n/a

Page 135

Investment
Limit / Max. %
of total
investments
£4,000,000
(> 364&365 day
limit)

Max. maturity period

5 years

£4,000,000
(> 364&365 day
limit)

To be determined on an
individual case basis,
inclusive of options for the
Council to review terms at
specified periods of time (no
greater than 5 years)

£4,000,000
(> 364&365 day
limit)

2 years

£6,000,000
(as per Yellow
limit)

5 years

£3,000,000
(10% of highest
balance)

1 year

£3.000,000
(10% of highest
balance)
£3,000,000
(10% of highest
balance)
£3,000,000
(10% of highest
balance)
£3,000,000
(10% of highest
balance)
£4,500,000
(15% of highest
balance)

2 years

2 years

2 years

2 years

1 year

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs):
Non-specified Investments
1. Government Liquidity
Funds – all maturities
2. Money Market Funds –
all maturities
3. Enhanced cash funds –
all maturities
4. Gilt Funds – all maturities

Minimum Credit Criteria
AAA rated
AAA rated
AAA rated
AAA rated

Page 136

Investment Limit/
Max. % of total
investments
£4,500,000 (15% of
highest balance)
£6,000,000 (20% of
highest balance)
£3,000,000 (10% of
highest balance)
£3,000,000 (10% of
highest balance)

Max.
maturity
period
2 years
2 years
2 years
2 years

Agenda Item 13
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee
14th February 2018
TITLE:

2017/18 Internal Audit Periodic Report
September 2017 to January 2018

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

John Leak – Internal Audit Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached - Appendix 1 Audit Reports Issued Between 1st
September 2017 and 31st January 2018
Appendix 2 Internal Audit 2017/18 Progress Information
as at 31st January 2018
Appendix
3
2016/17
Audit
Recommendations
Implementation

1.

Reason for the Report:
1.1

2.

Recommendation
2.1

3.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. In
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit
Manager must report periodically to the Audit Committee on the internal
audit activity’s performance relative to its plan.

That the committee note the progress information contained within this
report.

Executive Summary
3.1

The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance
information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2017/18
financial year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and

Page 137

completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations
made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management.
3.2

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities
4.1

5.

The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the
Annual Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective
use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money.

Options and Analysis
5.1

6.

All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 100% of
2017/18 audit recommendations that are due have been implemented.
Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not
corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an
appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It
should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to
implement agreed recommendations.

There are no options to consider.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
None.

6.5

Legal
None.

6.6

Sustainability

Page 138

None.
6.7

Internal and External Consultation
None.

6.8

Risk Assessment
None.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers
None

Location

Contact details

N/A

John Leak
Audit Manager
Tel: (01538) 395695
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 139

7.

Background and Detail
7.1

Introduction

7.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance
information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2017/18
financial year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and
completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations
made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management.
7.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual
risk assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2017/18 was
agreed by this Committee at the 18th May 2017 meeting. The Internal
Audit service also carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a
contingency is usually built in. This unplanned work consists mainly of
internal control consultancy work and special investigations into
suspected fraud and irregularity.
7.2

Audits Reports Issued & Status of Agreed Recommendations

7.2.1 A summary of the Audit Reports issued during the period 1st September
2017 to 31st January 2018 is shown in the table below. Further details
of these audits outlining key issues and strengths and improvements
are shown in Appendix 1.
Service

Audit

Recommendations
High Medium
Low
Risk
Risk
Risk
0
0
5

Assurance

Environmental
Services

Land
Charges

Development
Services /
Regeneration

Conservation
Grants

0

0

5

Satisfactory

Operational
Services

Horticulture

0

3

6

Satisfactory

Assets

Capital
Contract
Management
& Housing
Contracts

0

1

6

Satisfactory

Democratic &
Community
Services

Safeguarding
Children &
Vulnerable
Adults

0

3

12

Satisfactory

Legal & Election
Services

Elections

0

3

15

Satisfactory

Regeneration

Planning
Policy

0

0

4

Substantial

Page 140

Satisfactory

Service

Audit

Recommendations
High Medium
Low
Risk
Risk
Risk
0
2
7

Assurance

Customer
Services

Housing
Advice

Satisfactory

Executive
Director
(People)

Data
Protection &
Information
Governance

0

4

11

Satisfactory

Finance &
Procurement

Treasury
Management

0

0

1

Substantial

7.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits in progress and completed
during the current financial year including the current status of audit
recommendations is detailed in Appendix 2.
All audit
recommendations have been agreed, and to date 100% of 2017/18
audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected,
Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate
manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted
that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed
recommendations.
7.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit
recommendation being allocated a risk, every audit completed has
been given an ‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s
assessment of the internal control environment. These assurance
opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. The control
levels are defined as follows:
Control
Level
Substantial

Definition

There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve
the objectives and controls are consistently applied.
Satisfactory
There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the
most part, are consistently applied. However, weakness in
the design or inconsistent application of controls within a
few areas put achievement of particular objectives at risk.
Limited
Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance
with controls in a number of areas are such to put the
system objectives at risk.
Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of
controls, which leaves the system open to significant abuse
or error.

Page 141

7.2.4 Appendix 3 is a summary of recommendations made in the previous
financial year 2016/17 implemented to date. This information will keep
Councillors informed of progress made to ensure that all previous year
audit recommendations are implemented. Due dates for implementation
of some previous year recommendations will fall into 2017/18 and
beyond depending on when the audit was carried out so this appendix
will show when those recommendations become due for
implementation. In due course, all recommendations will fall due and it
will be possible to clearly identify which recommendations have not
been implemented.
7.2.5 To date 90% of 2016/17 audit recommendations that are due have
been implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been
identified and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be
resolved in an appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor
such cases. It should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant
Managers to implement agreed recommendations.
7.3

Audits In Progress

7.3.1 The status of audits that are currently in progress is shown in the table
below.
Service

Audit

Status

Chief Executive

Emergency
Planning /
BCP

Audit Complete. Management Response.

Development
Services

Development
Control S106

Audit in Progress.

Environmental
Services

Licensing

Audit in Progress.

Legal & Election
Services

Freedom of
Information

Audit in Progress.

Regeneration

Regeneration

Audit in Progress.

Finance &
Procurement

Sundry
Debtors

Audit in Progress.

Housing &
Benefits

Carelink

Audit in Progress.

Finance &
Procurement

NNDR

Audit in Progress.

Finance &
Procurement

Council Tax

Audit in Progress.

Page 142

7.4

Progress against Audit Plan

7.4.1 The current year to date has seen steady progress against planned
audits and all of the audits in progress or nearing completion as
detailed in 7.3 above will be completed soon. It is anticipated at this
stage that a satisfactory year end position will be achieved.
7.4.2 Current key progress information is summarised in the following table,
excluding unplanned work unless otherwise stated:
Summary Progress Information to 31st January 2018
Percentage of Audit Plan completed / substantially
completed

47%

Percentage of Audit Plan In Progress

21%

Number of recommendations made (including unplanned
work)

131

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service
Managers (including unplanned work)

100%

Percentage of recommendations implemented within
agreed timescale (including unplanned work)

100%

7.4.3 Should recommendations have not been agreed, compensating
controls exist or service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency
of the current system for the benefit of service delivery.

Page 143

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED BETWEEN 1st SEPTEMBER 2017 &
31st JANUARY 2018

Land Charges
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings
Key Issues

Strengths and Improvements
 Search requests are promptly and
accurately processed.
 Search fees have now been aligned across
the Alliance.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Income
System Access
Reporting
Websites
Contingency Arrangements
Total

Medium
R
A

Low
R
1
1

2

Page 145

A

1
1
1
3

APPENDIX 1

Conservation Grants
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings
Key Issues

Strengths and Improvements
 All grants reviewed had been processed
and paid promptly.
 All grant applications are held electronically
and a summary ‘checklist’ created for each.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

Website (Advertisement)
Appraisal
Compliance with Grant Terms &
Conditions
Inspections
Total

A

Medium
R
A

Low
R
1
1
2
1
5

Page 146

A

APPENDIX 1

Horticulture
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings
Key Issues
 All events should be appropriately
authorised
and
all
documentation
maintained including post application
advice, risk assessments and signed
terms and conditions.
 The procedure and guidance documents
provided to event organisers should be
reviewed to ensure that clear advice is
provided regarding any potential food
vendors at the event and any known
details passed to the Environmental
Health service.
 Procurement Procedure Rules should be
adhered to for all annual contract values
exceeding £2,000.

Strengths and Improvements
 The Playing Pitch Strategy is complete and
awaiting approval.
 TPO applications are recorded on a
register. TPO applications are processed
within the 8 week timescale as defined by
legislation.
 Signed agreements are in place for all
concessions.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Events within Parks & Open Spaces
Playground Equipment Procurement
Concessions
Amenity Maintenance Service
Total

Medium
R
A
2
1

3

Page 147

Low
R
4
1
1
6

A

APPENDIX 1

Capital Contract Management & Housing Contracts
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings
Key Issues
 Documented
procedures
should
be
introduced in relation to the approval of
contract variations.

Strengths and Improvements
 Joint working with Procurement and the
introduction of electronic tenders has
resulted in tenders being consistently
managed.
 Contract spend is regularly monitored.
 The restructure within Asset Services and
introduction of standard processes has
resulted in capital projects being more
consistently managed across the Alliance.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

Project Documentation
Risk Management
Project Management Training
Use of External Consultants
Contract Variations
Post Project Review
Contract Payments
Total

A

Medium
R
A

Low
R
1
1
1
1

A

1
1
1

Page 148

1
5

1

APPENDIX 1

Safeguarding
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings
Key Issues
 A single Alliance Recruitment Policy should
be documented to include current
procedures with regards to Safeguarding
and Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS)
checking.
 A review should be undertaken of the
current levels of access to Safeguarding
records held on the Council’s network and
access
removed/restricted
where
appropriate.
 A Policy should be developed that
considers
safeguarding
controls
/
assurance for transacting with contractors,
volunteers and any other organisations.

Strengths and Improvements
 Job descriptions and person specifications
have now been amended to include
Safeguarding.
 Regular safeguarding meetings take place
both internally and externally.
 Safeguarding training forms part of the
Alliance E-ssentials Corporate mandatory
training.
 All safeguarding referrals reviewed had
been adequately dealt with.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Staff & Member Training / MyView
Recruitment & Disclosure & Barring
Service (DBS) checks
Safeguarding Referral Form
Recording Of Concerns
Access
Procurement & Contract Management
Risk Register
Policy & Procedures
Total

Medium
R
A
1

Low
R
5
1

A
1

1
1
1
2
1
1
3

Page 149

9

3

APPENDIX 1

Elections
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings
Key Issues
 Procurement procedure rules should be
followed in all instances where spend
reaches appropriate levels.
 Working times should be appropriately
recorded and monitored to ensure
compliance with local and national
regulations.
 Recruitment and Selection procedures
should be adhered to when recruiting
temporary staff.

Strengths and Improvements
 Increased alignment of processes and
procedures.
 Successful delivery of a number of
significant elections during the year.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

Nominations
Security
Planning & Review
Procurement
Training
Postal Voting
Payment of Staff
Recruitment
Polling Stations
Accounts
Total

A

Medium
R
A

1
1

3

1
12

1

Page 150

Low
R
1
1
2
1
1
1
3
1

A

1

1
1
3

APPENDIX 1

Planning Policy
Assurance Level
Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings
Key Issues

Strengths and Improvements
 The Local Plan was approved by Council
and adopted on 14 April 2016.
 There is a procedure in place to ensure that
Neighbourhood Plans are subject to
consultation and adoption.
 The Statement of Community Involvement
was confirmed as ‘sound’ by an external
inspector.
 Annual Monitoring Reports are produced.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Procurement & Printing
Local Plan Database
Risk Register
Total

Page 151

Medium
R
A

Low
R
1
1
1
3

A
1
1

APPENDIX 1

Housing Advice
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings
Key Issues
 Details of homelessness enquiries should
be entered onto the Locata system within
the same working day where possible, and
preferably, directly onto the Locata system.
Any handwritten notes should stored
securely overnight in a lockable container.
 The procedure for placing homeless
applicants in temporary accommodation in
the non originating authority of the Alliance
should be made robust, and any related
costs should be correctly accounted for.

Strengths and Improvements
 The Council liaises effectively with partners
and good relationships are in place.
 Access to advice and assistance is
available 24 hours a day.
 The government criteria were correctly
applied for all cases of homelessness
reviewed.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

P1E Return
Homelessness Enquiries
Homelessness Prevention Fund
Temporary Accommodation
Rent Deposit Bonds
Homelessness Strategy
Total

A

Medium
R
A
1
1

2

Page 152

Low
R
1
1
1
1
1
1
6

A

1
1

APPENDIX 1

Data Protection & Information Governance
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues
 Each service should ensure that any
personal or sensitive data is collected and
processed in accordance with the
conditions applicable to the Data
Protection Act.
 A review of systems utilised to record
personal data should be undertaken to
ensure that procedures are in place to
ensure that information is deleted once it
is no longer required.
 A standard paragraph should be included
within all forms which include the
recording of personal information, to
ensure that data subjects are made aware
of use and storage of such data.
 All relevant staff should be provided with
sufficient information / training regarding
the General Data Protection Regulation.

Strengths and Improvements
 An ‘Information Governance Group’ has
been established and meets on a regular
basis.
 Privacy Impact Assessments have been
introduced as part of the Alliance Project
Methodology.
 Information Asset Registers are being
completed by each service area to assist in
the identification and effective management
of data.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Risk Register
Data Protection Awareness
Information Governance Group
Privacy Impact Assessments
Compliance with the Data Protection
Principles
Protective Marking, Handling and
Disposal Policy
Subject Access Requests
General Data Protection Regulation
Total

Medium
R
A

3

Low
R
1
1
1
2
2
1

1
4

Page 153

2
1
11

A

APPENDIX 1

Treasury Management
Assurance Level
Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings
Key Issues

Strengths and Improvements
 Sample testing found that all borrowings
and investments were correctly authorised
and accurately accounted for.
 The Treasury Management performance is
regularly reviewed by Members and the
strategy is updated annually.
 All
relevant
documentation
was
appropriately authorised.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

Member Training
Total

Page 154

A

Medium
R
A

Low
R
1
1

A

APPENDIX 2
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2017/18 PROGRESS INFORMATION AS AT 31st JANUARY 2018
AUDIT

Page 155

Procurement
Housing Rents
Cemeteries
Payroll Expenses
Corporate Project Management
Disabled Facilities Grants Assurance
Land Charges
Conservation Grants
Horticulture
Capital Contract Management
}
Housing Planned Maintenance }
Safeguarding Children & V A
Elections
Planning Policy
Housing Advice
Emergency Planning / BCP
Development Control Section 106
Data Protection & Info Governance
Licensing
Freedom of Information
Regeneration
Treasury Management
Sundry Debtors
Carelink
NNDR
Council Tax
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE
Key:
Risk
High

TOTAL
RECOMMENDATIONS
Regulatory
Added
value

HIGH RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS
Agreed / (Not
Due to
Actioned
Agreed)
date
to date

MEDIUM RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS
Agreed / (Not
Due to
Actioned
Agreed)
date
to date

LOW RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS
Agreed / (Not
Due to
Actioned
Agreed)
date
to date

6
2
10
9
8

1
2
2
1
2

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

3
2
3
2
0

2
0
2
1
0

2
0
2
1
0

4
2
9
8
10

2
0
6
2
9

2
0
6
2
9

2
5
9
6

3
0
0
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
3
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

5
5
6
6

0
4
1
2

0
4
1
2

12
15
3
8

3
3
1
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

3
3
0
2

0
1
0
0

0
1
0
0

12
15
4
7

0
2
0
0

0
2
0
0

15

0

0

0

0

4

0

0

11

2

2

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

6

6

30

30

131

0

26

Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially
causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council
assets, information and reputation. Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly.

Medium

Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a
breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information
and reputation. Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system
controls / necessary improvement in service provision.

Low

Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets,
information and reputation. Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement
in service provision.

ASSURANCE OPINION /
COMMENTS

Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
N/A
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Management Response
Work In Progress
Satisfactory
Work In Progress
Work In Progress
Work In Progress
Substantial
Work In Progress
Work In Progress
Work In Progress
Work In Progress

105

Class
Regulatory

Added
Value

To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations /
Policies and Procedures.

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit
to either the user or the customer.

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 3
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2016/17 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS IMPLEMENTATION
AUDIT

TOTAL
RECOMMENDATIONS
Regulatory
Added
value

HIGH RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS
Agreed / (Not
Due to
Actioned
Agreed)
date
to date

MEDIUM RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS
Agreed / (Not
Due to
Actioned
Agreed)
date
to date

Page 157

Housing Rents
5
2
0
0
0
2
Democratic Services
11
3
0
0
0
0
CCTV
9
1
0
0
0
2
Right to Buy
4
1
0
0
0
0
Taxi Licensing
15
8
1
1
1
6
Bank Contract
5
1
0
0
0
3
Tourism
4
0
0
0
0
0
Capital Accounting
0
0
0
0
0
0
Street Cleansing
7
2
0
0
0
2
Social Media
5
2
0
0
0
0
Housing Tenancy Allocation
6
0
0
0
0
1
Bacs Transmissions
8
1
0
0
0
2
Food Safety
6
0
0
0
0
0
Grounds Maintenance
10
1
0
0
0
3
Performance Management
2
0
0
0
0
0
Parking
18
2
0
0
0
2
Assets & Facilities
6
1
0
0
0
4
Human Resources
9
1
0
0
0
1
Sports Development
0
0
0
0
0
0
Risk Management
3
0
0
0
0
0
Treasury Management
1
0
0
0
0
0
Housing Repairs & Maintenance
9
4
0
0
0
2
Commercial Properties
6
1
0
0
0
3
Corporate Governance
7
0
0
0
0
0
Sundry Debtors
3
3
0
0
0
1
General Ledger
1
1
0
0
0
0
Recovery
5
1
0
0
0
1
Budgetary Control
0
0
0
0
0
0
Payroll
8
3
0
0
0
2
Creditor Payments
6
0
0
0
0
1
NNDR
4
0
0
0
0
1
Housing Benefits
4
2
0
0
0
1
Council Tax
8
1
0
0
0
3
Postal Arrangements
7
3
0
0
0
2
Housing Strategy
0
1
0
0
0
0
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS
248
1
45
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE
1
1
Risk
High
Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially
causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council
assets, information and reputation. Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly.
Medium

Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a
breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information
and reputation. Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system
controls / necessary improvement in service provision.

Low

Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets,
information and reputation. Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement
in service provision.

2
0
1
0
6
2
0
0
1
0
1
2
0
3
0
2
3
1
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
2
1
0
0
0
1
0
29
Class
Regulatory

Added
Value

2
0
1
0
6
2
0
0
1
0
1
2
0
3
0
2
2
1
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
2
1
0
0
0
1
0
28

LOW RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS
Agreed / (Not
Due to
Actioned
Agreed)
date
to date

5
14
8
5
16
3
4
0
7
7
5
7
6
8
2
18
3
9
0
3
1
11
4
7
5
2
5
0
9
5
3
5
6
8
1
202

5
14
6
5
16
2
4
0
7
6
4
7
5
7
2
16
1
7
0
3
1
6
2
5
4
2
1
0
7
3
2
3
6
0
1

5
14
6
5
16
2
4
0
7
6
4
7
5
7
2
4
1
7
0
3
1
6
2
5
4
2
1
0
7
3
1
3
1
0
1

160

142

ASSURANCE OPINION /
COMMENTS

Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Limited
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Limited
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Substantial

To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations /
Policies and Procedures.

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit
to either the user or the customer.

This page is intentionally left blank

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19
May
2018

July
2018

Oct
2018

Feb
2019

Details

Internal Audit Progress Report









Reports on progress against the audit plan inc. key
performance information.

Annual Audit Plan



Item
INTERNAL AUDIT

To consider and approve the Annual Audit Pan.

Internal Audit Annual Report



Annual Review of Effectiveness of IA



To consider Internal Audit’s annual report and opinion
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
Council’s internal control environment.
To consider an annual review of the effectiveness of
the Council’s system of internal audit.
To consider updates to the formal document that
defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and
responsibility.



A summary of emerging national issues and
developments that the Committee may wish to
consider. Also provides a summary of progress on the
audit – where not covered by other items on the
agenda.

Internal Audit Charter
EXTERNAL AUDIT

Page 159

Audit Committee Update



Audit Fee Letter



Letter setting out annual audit fee .


Audit Plan


Annual Audit Letter



Certification of Claims & Returns Annual
Report



Informing the Audit Risk Assessment



Agenda Item 14

Audit Findings Report

Report specifying the detailed risks that external audit
consider as part of their work, the audit approach and
the result of any interim work
To consider the external auditor’s report to those
charged with governance on issues arising from the
audit of the accounts and the VFM conclusion.
To consider the external auditor’s annual report on
their overall assessment of the Council.
Report summarising the findings from work to certify
grant claims made to the government..
To consider the risk assessment and understanding of
management processes.

Item

May
2018

July
2018

Oct
2018

Feb
2019

Details

FINANCE
Statement of Accounts



Treasury Management Update



Annual Treasury Management Report









Treasury Management Strategy

To review and approve the Council’s annual
Statement of Accounts.
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury
Management position to date and the projected
outturn.
To recommend to Council for approval the annual
Treasury
Management
Report
summarising
performance and compliance with the Strategy and
Prudential Indicators.
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy.

CORPORATE

Page 160



Annual Governance Statement (AGS)



AGS Progress Against Action Plan


Risk Management Update



Risk Management Strategy
Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy



Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Policy
& Procedures



Whistleblowing Policy





To review and approve the Annual Governance
Statement and the underlying assurance evaluation
process and supporting evidence.
Report on progress made against the actions raised
as part of the previous years Annual Governance
Statement process.
Report on developments in the Council’s risk
management arrangements.
Update of the Risk Management Strategy (biennial
February)
To consider updates to the Council’s Anti-Fraud &
Corruption Policy.
To consider updates to the Council’s Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act Policy & Procedures
To consider updates to the Council’s Whistleblowing
Policy.

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE
Agree Programme of Work
Review of Effectiveness of A&R Committee
inc. Terms of Reference










To agree future work programme of A&R Committee.
To consider the annual review of the effectiveness of
the Audit & Regulatory Committee and the A&R
Committee’s Terms of Reference.

